
 

Agenda 

 
 

 
 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
to be held at 

City of Penticton Council Chambers 
171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 

 
Tuesday, May 23, 2017  

at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 

1. Call Regular Council Meeting to Order 
 
2. Introduction of Late Items 
  
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Recess to Committee of the Whole 

 
5. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting 
 
6. Adoption of Minutes: 

 
6.1 Minutes of the May 2, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting 1-2 Receive 
 
6.2 Minutes of the May 2, 2017 Public Hearing 3-6 Receive 
 
6.3 Minutes of the May 2, 2017 Regular Council Meeting 7-13 Adopt 

 
7. Committee  and Board Reports:   

  
 7.1 Official Community Plan Task Force Minutes of April 20, 2017    14-16    

Recommendation: THAT Council receive the draft minutes of the Official Community Plan Task Force meeting of 
April 20, 2017. 
 

 7.2 Arts, Creative and Cultural Innovations Minutes of April 21, 2017    17-28    
Recommendation: THAT Council receive the draft minutes of the Arts, Creative and Cultural Innovations Committee 
meeting of April 21, 2017. 
Committee Recommendation: THAT Council approve the allocation of $18,000 from the Public Art Reserve Fund to 
the Valley First Public Sculpture project. 

    

8. Correspondence 
   
 8.1 Petition – Atkinson Street safety concerns 29-35    
    
 8.2 First Coyote Hills Girl Guides - concerns  36-46  

 
 8.3 World Ocean Day  47-48  
 
 



    
 

9. Staff Reports:  

 
GMI 9.1 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-36 49-56  

Re: Transit Fares 
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2017-36”, a bylaw to amend Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07 to set new Transit Fares effective July 1, 2017. 
 

GMI 9.2 Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund Grant Application - Facilities GIS 57-58  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council endorses a grant application to the Capacity Building Stream of the Gas Tax 
Strategic Priorities Fund to create a Building Facility GIS Database;  
AND THAT the Building Facility GIS Database project be included in the 2018 budget showing 100% grant funding;  
AND FURTHER THAT the General Manager of Infrastructure and the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to sign any 
required forms related to the grant application. 

 
GMI 9.3 Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund Grant Application - Arena 59-61  

Staff Recommendation: THAT Council endorses a grant application to the Capital Infrastructure Project Stream of 
the Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund to either upgrade Memorial Arena or to build a new arena;  
AND THAT once the Penticton Arena Task Force has made their recommendation to Council on how to proceed with 
arena upgrading or replacement that the grant application be updated to reflect the recommendation;  
AND THAT the Arena upgrade / replacement project be included in the 2018 budget and that any funding required 
in excess of $6,000,000 be funded by the City of Penticton through reserves, other grants, borrowing, donations 
and/or funding partners as recommended by the Arena Task Force and endorsed by Council;  
AND FURTHER THAT the Manager of Facilities and the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to sign any required 
forms related to the grant application. 
 

GMI 9.4 Amendment to the Warren Oxbow Servicing Agreement 62-95  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council approve the Warren Avenue Oxbow Servicing Termination Agreement with 
the Penticton Indian Band as contained in Attachment “B”;  
AND THAT Council approve the Warren Avenue Oxbow Servicing Agreement with Warren Avenue Development 
Corporation to provide City electricity, sanitary sewer and water services to the Warren Avenue Oxbow lands as 
contained in Attachment “C”;  
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to execute both of these agreements. 
 

DE 9.5 Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72 96-101  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council rescind third reading of “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 
2016-72”, a bylaw to amend “Development Cost Charges Bylaw No. 2007-79”,  
AND THAT Council give third reading as amended to “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72”, 
amending Section 8 as recommended by the Inspector of Municipalities;  
AND THAT in accordance with Section 560 of the Local Government Act, the bylaw be forwarded to the Inspector of 
Municipalities for approval. 
 

PWM 9.6 Provincial Licence of Occupation  102-125  
Re: Howard Lake Dam Access 
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council authorize the Mayor and the Corporate Officer to enter into a License of 
Occupation, Attachment “A” with the Province of British Columbia for the purposes of constructing an access road 
to Howard Lake Dam. 
 

PWM 9.7 Upper Carmi Fire Protection 126-128  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council support adding Upper Carmi area, up to the 11.5km mark from Fire Station 
202, into the RDOS Fire Protection Agreement with conditions outlined in this report. 
 

PWM 9.8 Mobile Retail Vending 129-135  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council support an amendment to the one-year pilot program for Mobile Retail 
Vending endorsed on March 21, 2017 to include:  
• A location for one Mobile Retail Vending truck at a time along the north-west corner of Power Street and Lakeshore 
Drive (Attachment A) AND/OR  
• Two locations for Mobile Retail Vending trucks in the Gyro Hub location (Attachment A). 
 



    
 

 
10. Public Question Period 

 
11. Recess to In-Camera Meeting 

Resolution: THAT Council recess to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter section 
90 (1) as follows: 

 
(e)  the acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land or improvements, if the council considers that 

disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality;  
 
(g) litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality; 
 
(i) the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for 

that purpose; 
 
(j) information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document would be 

prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act;  
 

12. Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 

13. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing 
  
14. Reconsideration of Bylaws and Permits: 

            
 14.1 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21 136-145  Adopt 

  Re: 634 Westminster Avenue W & 201 Maple Street 
  DVP PL2016-7826 & DP PL2016-7825   Approve        
 
 14.2 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27 146-149  Adopt 

  Re: 180 Industrial Avenue W 
  DVP PL2017-7878          Approve 
   

 14.3 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32 150-151  2nd/3rd  
Re:  747 Government Street 

 
 14.4 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-33 152-153  2nd/3rd  

Re:  285 Nanaimo Ave. W. 
 
 14.5 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-34 154-155  2nd/3rd /Adopt 

Re:  532/536 Main Street 
  
 14.6 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-35 156  2nd/3rd  

Re:  Administrative Amendment 
  
15. Land Matters: 
 

BPM 15.1 Liquor-Primary Licence Permanent Amendment and Structural Change  157-174 Del/Sub 
Re:  Mile Zero Wine Bar, 200 Ellis Street 
Staff Recommendation: 1. THAT Council recommends to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) that it 
supports the application from Mile Zero Wine Bar located at 200 Ellis Street for a Permanent change for:  
• hours of service (interior) from 11:00am to 12:00am (midnight) to 11:00am to 2:00am, Sunday to Saturday, and  
• an interior occupant load increase from 60 persons to 100 persons;  
2. AND THAT Council supports the structural change application to add an exterior licensed patio with:  
• Maximum occupant load of 40 persons,  
• Hours of service from 11:00am to 10:00pm, with  
• No exterior amplified music.  



    
 

 
BPM 15.2 Liquor-Primary Licence Permanent Change 175-181 Del/Sub 

Re:  LUSO Canadian Multicultural Club (Portuguese Sporting Club of Penticton) 
Staff Recommendation:  THAT Council recommends to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) that it 
supports the application from the LUSO Canadian Multicultural Club (Portuguese Sporting Club of Penticton) 
located at 135 Winnipeg Street for a Permanent change of hours of service from:  
• From: 4:00pm to 1:00am Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday;  
• To 2:00pm to 1:00am, Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday.  
 

DDS 15.3 Temporary Use Permit Application PL2016-7761 182-189 Del/Sub 
Re:  1704 Government Street 
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council approve “Temporary Use Permit PL2016-7761”, a permit to allow for 
‘temporary offices in portable trailers’ on Lot A, District Lot 3429S, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 23195, 
Except Plan 37288, located at 1704 Government Street, for a period of 3 years. 
 

DDS 15.4 Re-issuance of Development Variance Permit PL2016-7608 190-200 Del/Sub 
Re:  838 Oakville Street (formerly 798 Revelstoke Avenue) 
Staff Recommendation: THAT  “Development Variance Permit PL2016-7608” for Lot A, Plan EPP65038, District Lot 2, 
Similkameen Division Yale District, Group 7, located at 838 Oakville Street (formerly 798 Revelstoke Avenue), be re-
issued with a drawing outlining the off-site works required as part of the development. 
 

DDS 15.5 Adoption of Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07 201-209  
Re:  1830 Ridgedale Avenue 
Staff Recommendation: THAT  Council amend the conditions for approval of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-
07”, outlined in Council Resolution 25/2017, as follows:  
• Amending Condition 2 (off site traffic calming) and Condition 3 (tree replacement) removing the requirement to 
bond for the works prior to zoning adoption; and  
• Removing Condition 5 (geotechnical covenant) in its entirety  
AND THAT Council rescind third reading and give third reading as amended to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-07” , changing the Zoning Bylaw number from 2011-23 to 2017-08;  
AND THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07”. 
 

DDS 15.6 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37 210-230  
DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905 
Re:  380 White Avenue East 
Staff Recommendation: THAT  “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” a bylaw to add Section 10.6.4.6: “In the case 
of that part of Lots 18-20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, 
located at 380 White Avenue East, two duplexes with a combined Floor Area Ratio of 1.15 are permitted,” be given 
first reading and forwarded to the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing; AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-37,” a 4.0m x 4.0m corner cut on the North East portion of the property is registered with the Land 
Title Office; AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37,” a lot consolidation of Lots 18-
20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, is registered with the 
land title office. 
 THAT delegations and submissions be heard for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7904” for that part of Lots 
18-20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, located at 380 
White Avenue East, a permit to waive the requirement to provide on-site parking for four duplex suites, to decrease 
the minimum front yard from 4.5m to 3.0m and to decrease the minimum rear yard from 6.0m to 3.0m;  
AND THAT “DVP PL2017-7904” be considered only after adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37”.  
THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37,” approve “Development Permit 
PL2017-7905”, for Lots 18-20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 
755, located at 380 White Avenue East, a permit that allows for the construction of two duplexes. 
 

DDS 15.7 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38 231-254  
Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39 
DVP PL2017-7900 
Re:  1498 Leir Street 



    
 

Staff Recommendation: THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38”, a bylaw to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-
08 to rezone Lot 3, District Lot 250, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir Street, from R1 
(Large Lot Residential) to C1 (Commercial Transition) be introduced, read a first time and be forwarded to the June 6, 
2017 Public Hearing;  
THAT delegations and submissions for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7900” for Lot 3, District Lot 250, 
Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir Street, a permit to reduce the required parking 
from 11 stalls to 4 stalls and, to reduce the minimum distance from the driveway to the flanking street curb from 10 
metres to 7 metres, be heard at the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing;  
AND THAT “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39” being a bylaw to include Lot 3, District Lot 
250, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir Street, in the General Tourist Commercial 
Development Permit Area Schedule “H” of Official Community Plan Bylaw No 2002-20 be introduced, read a first 
time and forwarded to the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing; AND THAT Council consider “DVP PL2017-7900” following 
the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38”. 

 

16. Notice of Motion 
 
17. Business Arising  

 
18. Council Round Table 
  
19. Public Question Period 
 
20. Adjournment 



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Committee of the Whole 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, May 2, 2017  
Recessed from the Regular Council Meeting at 1:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Mayor Jakubeit 
  Councillor Konanz 
  Councillor Sentes 

Councillor Picton 
Councillor Watt 
Councillor Martin 
 

Absent:  Councillor Sayeed (with notice) 
 
   Staff:  Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Ian Chapman, Acting General Manager of Infrastructure 
     Jim Bauer, Chief Financial Officer  
     Anthony Haddad, Director of Development Services 
     Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Angie Collison, Deputy Corporate Officer 
 
 
 

1. Call to order 
 

The Mayor called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 1:02 p.m. 
 

2. Adoption of Agenda 
 

 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting held on May 2, 2017 be adopted 
as circulated. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

3. Delegations: 
 

 3.1 Proclamation – National Hospice Palliative Care Week 
  May 7 – 13, 2017 
 

 Mayor Jakubeit proclaimed May 7 – 13, 2017 as “National Hospice Palliative Care 
 Week”  in the City of Penticton. 

 
 
 

- 1 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Committee of the Whole   Page 2 of 2 
 

 3.2 RDOS – Amendment of Solid Waste Management Plan 
 

Cameron Baughen, RDOS Solid Waste Management Coordinator, provided Council 
with an overview of the plan amendment which is to choose a site for a regional 
compost facility for residential and commercial food scrapes, wastewater treatment 
sludge, yard waste and wood waste. 

 
 3.3 Penticton Creek Restoration Master Plan and 2017 Project Delegation 
   

Ian Chapman, City Engineer and Bryn White, Chair of the Penticton Creek Restoration 
Committee, provided Council with an update on the background work of the Penticton 
Creek Master Plan and the construction work planned for the summer. 

  
4. Adjourn to Regular Meeting 

 
 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council adjourn the Committee of the Whole at 1:49 p.m. and reconvene the Regular 
Meeting of Council.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 
Certified correct:      Confirmed: 

 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ _______________________________ 
Dana Schmidt  Andrew Jakubeit 
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 2 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Hearing 
City of Penticton, Council Chambers 

 171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, May 2, 2017  
at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Mayor Jakubeit  
  Councillor Sentes 

Councillor Watt 
Councillor Picton 
Councillor Martin 
Councillor Konanz 
 

Absent: Councillor Sayeed (with notice) 
 

   Staff:  Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
     Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer   
     Jim Bauer, Chief Financial Officer 
     Anthony Haddad, Director of Development Services 
     Blake Laven, Planning Manager 
     Angie Collison, Deputy Corporate Officer 

 
1. Call to order 

 
 Mayor Jakubeit called the public hearing to order at 6:00 p.m. for “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 

2017-26”, “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27”, OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-30” and 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-31”.  He explained that the public hearing was being held 
to afford all persons who considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaws an 
opportunity to be heard before Council. 

 
The Corporate Officer read the opening statement and introduced the purpose of the 
bylaws.  She then explained that the public hearing was being held to afford all persons who 
considered themselves affected by the proposed bylaws and related DVPs an opportunity to 
be heard before Council.  She further indicated that the public hearing was advertised 
pursuant to the Local Government Act. 

 
  
 “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-26” and “Zoning Amendment 

Bylaw No. 2017-27” (180 Industrial Avenue W) 
 
The purpose of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-26” is to amend 
Official Community Plan Bylaw 2002-20 as follows: 

 

- 3 -



 
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Public Hearing  Page 2 of 4 
    
  

Amend Schedule ‘B’ Future Land Use designation for a portion of Amended Lot A 
(DD244437F), DL 115, Similkameen Division Yale, District Plan 3494 Except Plans 
20051 and 26786 located at 180 Industrial Avenue W, from LR (Low Density 
Residential) to MR (Medium Density Residential) and include in Schedule ‘H’ General 
Multiple Development Permit Area. 
 

The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27” is to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 
2017-08 as follows: 
 

Rezone portion of Amended Lot A (DD 244437F), DL 115, Similkameen Division Yale, 
District Plan 3494 Except Plans 20051 and 26786 located at 180 Industrial Avenue W 
from P1 (Public Assembly) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing). 
 

The applicant is proposing to subdivide 180 Industrial Avenue W into two lots and construct 
a non-market rental, one storey apartment building consisting of ten units for individuals 
with intellectual disabilities and/or seniors and a five unit congregate housing building for 
individuals with intellectual disabilities.   
 
The Corporate Officer advised that seven letters have been received after the printing of the 
agenda. 
 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Jakubeit asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Tony Lang, Executive Director Community Living, tried to take the feedback from 

neighbourhood and create something that is part of Bruce Court neighbourhood.  Want 
it to be a residential neighbourhood. Addressed landscaping concerns, held public 
meeting, good support, don’t want the access off of Industrial Avenue, size of 
development is restricted by funding. 
 

Mayor Jakubeit asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Jakubeit asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, spoke in support of the development. 
• Mike Robinson, Penticton, read submission from owner of 162 Bruce Court, plan will 

increase traffic into cul-de-sac, suggest front of development face Industrial Avenue. 
 

The public hearing for “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-26” and “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-27” was terminated at 6:17 p.m. and no new information can be received on 
this matter. 

 
 

2. “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-30” and “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-31” (352, 398 Eckhardt Ave E) 
 
The purpose of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-30” is to amend 
Official Community Plan Bylaw 2002-20 as follows: 

 

- 4 -



 
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Public Hearing  Page 3 of 4 
    
  

Amend Schedule ‘B’ Future Land Use designation for Lot A, District Lot 202, 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 26857, located at 352 Eckhardt Ave E from I 
(Institutional) to MR (Medium Density Residential) and Amend Schedule ‘H’ General 
Multiple Development Permit Area to include Lot A, District Lot 202, Similkameen 
Division Yale District Plan 26857, located at 352 Eckhardt Avenue E and That Part of 
the West ½ of Lot 24 included in Plan B4852, Block 37 District Lot 202 Similkameen 
Division Yale District, Plan 356 located at 398 Eckhardt Avenue E. 
 
 

The purpose of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-31” is to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 
2017-08 as follows: 

 
Rezone Lot A, District Lot 202, Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 26857, located 
at 352 Eckhardt Avenue E from P1 (Public Assembly) to RM3 (Medium Density 
Multiple Housing) AND That Part of the West ½ of Lot 24 included in Plan B4852, 
Block 37 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 356 located at 398 
Eckhardt Avenue E from RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing) to RM3 (Medium 
Density Multiple Housing). 
 

The applicant is proposing to consolidated 352 and 398 Eckhardt Ave E and construct a 
twenty-four (24) unit townhouse development.  
 
The Corporate Officer advised that four letters of support and two of opposition have been 
received after the printing of the agenda. 
 
DELEGATIONS 

 
Mayor Jakubeit asked the public for the first time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Bruce Schoenne, developer, spoke in support of the application.  This proposal includes 

on-site parking, held open house, positive responses to the development. 
• Brijit Kemp, Warren Avenue W, KVR trail runs behind development, presume will not 

impact the trail. 
• Lynn Kelsey, Oakville Street, location is perfect, schools close by, easy transport, densify 

in a smart way, spoke in support of the development. 
• Julianna Martin, Gahan Avenue, concerned with parking, limited parking now. 
• Brad Martin, Gahan Avenue, recently purchased home, in favour of developments but 

concerned with lack of parking. Narrow street, reduced setbacks will have more impact 
on street, reconsider set back and sight lines and down to two storeys. 
 

Mayor Jakubeit asked the public for the second time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• No one spoke. 
 
Mayor Jakubeit asked the public for the third and final time if anyone wished to speak to the 
application. 
• Bruce Schoenne, 36 on site stalls, require 24.  Addition parking on Gahan Avenue as 

developing street to sidewalk, will widen the Avenue the length of property. 
• Mike Robinson, Penticton, parking concerns, asked for clarity on what area is being 

paved. 
 

- 5 -



 
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Public Hearing  Page 4 of 4 
    
  

The public hearing for “OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-30” and “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-31” was terminated at 6:30 p.m. and no new information can be received on 
this matter. 

 
 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 
 
 

_____________________  ________________________ 
Dana Schmidt  Andrew Jakubeit 
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 6 -



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Regular Council Meeting 
held at City of Penticton Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Tuesday, May 2, 2017  
at 1:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Mayor Jakubeit  
  Councillor Konanz   

Councillor Martin 
  Councillor Watt  
  Councillor Sentes 
  Councillor Picton 
 
Absent: Councillor Sayeed (with notice) 
     
Staff:  Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
  Ian Chapman, Acting General Manager of Infrastructure  
  Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 
  Jim Bauer, Chief Financial Officer 
  Anthony Haddad, Director of Development Services 

Angie Collison, Deputy Corporate Officer 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

The Mayor called the Regular Council meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. 
 

2. Introduction of Late Items 
   

3. Adoption of Agenda 
  

278/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Regular Council meeting held on May 2, 2017 as 
amended to include item 9.3 OCP Update. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 4. Recess to Committee of the Whole 
  

 Council recessed to a Committee of the Whole Meeting at 1:02 p.m. 
   

5. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting 
 

 Council reconvened the Regular Council Meeting at 1:49 p.m. 
 

- 7 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Regular Council   Page 2 of 7 
 

 6. Adoption of Minutes: 
 

  6.1 Minutes of the April 18, 2017 Regular Council Meeting 
 

279/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council adopt the minutes of the April 18, 2017 Regular Council Meeting as presented. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  
 7. Committee and Board Reports 

 
  7.1 Penticton Arena Task Force Minutes of March 20, 2017 

 

280/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council receive the minutes of the Penticton Arena Task Force meeting of March 20, 
2017. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  7.2 Penticton Creek Restoration Committee Minutes of April 5, 2017 

 

281/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council receive the draft minutes of the Penticton Creek Restoration Committee 
meeting of April 5, 2017. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
  

8. Correspondence  
 
9. Staff Reports: 

 
9.1 2016 Financial Statements 
   

  Jonathan McGraw, BDO Canada LLP, provided Council with the 2016 Financial Statements 
 for the City of Penticton.  

 
282/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council receive the Financial Statements as presented by BDO Canada LLP  for the year 
ending December 31, 2016. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

9.2 Non-Motorized Boat Access Points to Okanagan Lake  
 

283/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approves the installation of 3 non-motorized boat launch sites to service 
Okanagan Lake waterfront as follows: 

1. Marina Way Beach – West of the rock groin 
2. West of Martin Street Parking Lot –  West of Pier Water Sports lease area 
3. SS Sicamous – West side of SS Sicamous boat  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
9.3 Official Community Plan Update  

 
The Director of Development Services provided Council with an update and invitation to 
attend the May public sessions  for the Official Community Plan.  

- 8 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Regular Council   Page 3 of 7 
 

10. Public Question Period 
 
11. Recess to In-Camera Meeting 

 
284/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council recess at 2:46 p.m. to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of 
the Community Charter section 90 (1) as follows: 

(c) labour relations or other employee relations;  
 

(e)  the acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land or improvements, if the council considers 
that disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality;  

 

(f) law enforcement, if the council considers that disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the 
conduct of an investigation under or enforcement of an enactment; 

 

(g) litigation or potential litigation affecting the municipality; 
 

(i) the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose; 

 

(j) information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document would be 
prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of 
Privacy Act;  

(2) (b) the consideration of information received and held in confidence relating to negotiations between the 
municipality and a provincial government or the federal government or both, or between a provincial 
government or the federal government or both and a third party. 

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

12. Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. 
 

13. Reconvene the Regular Council Meeting following the Public Hearing 
 
 Council reconvened the Regular Council Meeting at 6:31 p.m.   

 
14. Reconsideration of Bylaws and Permits 

 
14.1 Phase 1 – Main Street Local Area Service Parcel Tax Bylaw No. 2017-03 
 

285/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Phase 1 – Main Street Local Area Service Parcel Tax Bylaw No. 2017-03”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
14.2 Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2017-25 

 
286/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council adopt “Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2017-25”. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
14.3 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-26 

Re: 180 Industrial Avenue W 
 

287/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2017-26”; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-26”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

- 9 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Regular Council   Page 4 of 7 
 

14.4 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27 
Re: 180 Industrial Avenue W 
 

288/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

14.5 Bylaw Notice Enforcement Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-28  
  

289/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Bylaw Notice Enforcement Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-28”.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
14.6 Municipal Ticketing Information Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-29 
  

290/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Municipal Ticketing Information Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-29”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
14.7 Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-30 
 Re:  352, 398 Eckhardt Avenue E 
 

291/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2017-30”; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-30”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
14.8 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-31 
 Re: 352, 398 Eckhardt Avenue E 
  

292/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-31”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 13. Land Matters:  
 

13.1 Winery Lounge and Special Event Area (SEA) Endorsement 
 Re:  Township 7 Vineyards and Winery, 1450 McMillan Avenue 
 
Delegations/Submissions:    

• Nil 
 

293/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council recommend to the Liquor Control and Licencing Branch (LCLB) that it support the 
application from Township 7 Vineyards & Winery (Penticton), located at 1450 McMillan Ave, for the 
proposed Winery Lounge & Special Event Area (SEA) Endorsement. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

- 10 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Regular Council   Page 5 of 7 
 

15.2 Development Variance Permit PL2017-7907  
 Development Permit PL2017-7908 
 Re: 251 Rigsby Street 
 
Delegations/Submissions:   Kathy Reese, Spiller Road, developer, application was approved 
before for three units but price point wouldn’t be supported. Decided to move to four units.  

 
294/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT delegations and submissions be heard for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7907” 
for Lot 25, District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District Plan 
1035 Except Plan EPP70206, located at 251 Rigsby Street, a permit to decrease the minimum 
front yard from 3.0m to 2.7m, to decrease the minimum south interior side yard from 3.0m to 
1.5m, to decrease the minimum exterior side yard from 4.5m to 4.4m and to decrease the 
minimum rear yard from 6.0m to 3.5m; 
AND THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7907” and “Development 
Permit PL2017-7908”, for Lot 25 District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-
Lytton) District Plan 1035 Except Plan EPP70206, located at 251 Rigsby Street, a permit that 
allows for the construction of a 4-unit townhouse.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

15.3 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32 
 Development Variance Permit PL2017-7910 
 Development Permit PL2017-7911 
 Re: 747 Government Street 

 
295/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32,” a bylaw to Rezone Lot 1 District Lots 202 and 
249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3562 Except Plan KAP68121, located at 747 
Government Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing), be 
given first reading and forwarded to the May 23, 2017 Public Hearing; 
AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32,” a 1.75m road 
dedication on the east side of the property (along Government Street) is registered with the 
Land Title Office. 

THAT delegations and submissions be heard for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7910” 
for Lot 1 District Lots 202 and 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3562 Except Plan 
KAP68121, located at 747 Government Street, a permit to waive the requirement for trees and 
shrubs to be planted in the landscape buffer area, to waive the visitor parking space 
requirement for cluster housing, to decrease the minimum interior side yards from 3.0m to 1.5m 
and to waive the requirements for street frontage upgrades along Bird Street as per Section 9.3 
of the City of Penticton Subdivision and Development Bylaw No. 2004-81; 
AND THAT “DVP PL2017-7910” be considered only after adoption of “Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2017-32”. 

THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32,” approve 
Development Permit PL2017-7911 for Lot 1 District Lots 202 and 249 Similkameen Division Yale 
District Plan 3562 Except Plan KAP68121, located at 747 Government Street, a permit that 
allows for the construction of two duplexes.   

CARRIED 

- 11 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Regular Council   Page 6 of 7 
 

Councillors Watt and Sentes, Opposed 
15.4 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-33 
 Development Permit PL2017-7913 
 Re:  285 Nanaimo Avenue W 

 
296/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-33,” a bylaw to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08, 
allowing ground floor residential in the C5 zone, as a site specific allowance, for Lot 1, District 
Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District, Plan EPP57755, 
located at 285 Nanaimo Ave W, be given first reading and forwarded to the May 23, 2017 Public 
Hearing; 
AND THAT Council, approve Development Permit PL2017-7913, a permit that allows for the 
construction of a four storey, 52 unit apartment building on Lot 1, District Lot 4, Group 7, 
Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District, Plan EPP57755, located at 285 
Nanaimo Ave W, subject to adoption of Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2017-33. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

15.5 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-34 
 Re:  532/536 Main Street 

 
297/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-34”, a bylaw adding section 11.5.4.7: “In the case 
of Lot 5, Block 19, District Lot 202, Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 269, located at 
532/536 Main Street, dwelling units on the first storey behind commercial spaces shall be 
permitted”, be introduced, read a first time and be forwarded to the May 23, 2017 Public 
Hearing. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
15.6 Development Permit PL2017-7882 
 Re:  32 – 56 Backstreet Boulevard 

 
298/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “DP PL2017-7882”, a permit to allow the construction of an eight (8) 
storey building on Lot 36, Lot 37, Lot 39, Lot 40, Block 6, District 202, Similkameen Division 
Yale District, Plan 269, located at 56, 52, 40 and 32 Backstreet Boulevard, The Easterly 15 Feet 
of Lot 38 Being The Easterly 15 Feet Frontage on Westminster Avenue By The Full Depth of 
Said Lot; Block 6, District Lot 202, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 269 located at 48 
Backstreet Boulevard; and  Lot 38, Block 6, District 202, Similkameen Division Yale District, 
Plan 269 Except the Easterly 15 Feet Measured Along Westminster Avenue By The Full Depth 
of Said Lot located at 44 Backstreet Boulevard; AND THAT the 6 lots be consolidated prior to 
issuance of the Development Permit. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
15.7 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-35 
 Re:  Administrative Amendment 

 
299/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-35”, an 
administrative amendment bylaw that fixes a clause in the C5 (City Centre Commercial) zone 
regarding residential units at the ground floor; 

- 12 -



    
Minutes of May 2, 2017 Regular Council   Page 7 of 7 
 

AND THAT Council direct staff to advertise the waiving of the Public Hearing for “Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-35”, in accordance with Section 467 of the Local Government 
Act. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 16. Notice of Motion 

 
17. Business Arising 
 
18. Council Round Table 

 
19. Public Question Period 

 
20. Adjournment  

 
300/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council adjourn the Regular Council meeting held on Tuesday, May 2, 2017 at  
7:32 p.m. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 
 
 
  

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Dana Schmidt  Andrew Jakubeit 
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

- 13 -



 

Minutes 
 
 
 

Official Community Plan Task Force Meeting  
held at City of Penticton, Council Chambers 

171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 
 

Thursday, April 20, 2017  
at 5:30 p.m. 

 
Present: Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
  Judy Sentes, Councillor 
  Andre Martin, Councillor 
  Tracy Van Raes, Penticton Wine & Country Chamber of Commerce Representative 

 Lynn Allin, Downtown Penticton Association Representative  
  Kristi Estergaard, Interior Health Representative 
  Dawn Russell, Penticton Indian Band Representative 

Jill Bateman, Penticton Industrial Development Association Representative 
Evelyn Riechert, Regional District of the Okanagan Similkameen Representative 
Garrett Cruickshank, Member at Large 
Sharon Fletcher, Member at Large 
Lynn Kelsey, Member at Large 
Randy Kowalchuk, Member at Large 
Randy Manuel, Member at Large 
Suzanne Moccia, Member at Large 
Denis O’Gorman, Member at Large 
Warren Sanders, Member at Large 
Bruce Schoenne, Member at Large 
Jillian Tamblyn, Member at Large 

 
Staff:  Ben Johnson, Special Projects Manager 
  Anthony Haddad, Director of Development Services 
  Blake Laven, Planning Manager 
  JoAnne Kleb, Communication Engagement Officer 
  Lorraine Williston, Corporate Committee Secretary 
 
     
1. Call to Order 
 

The Official Community Plan Task Force was called to order by Mayor Jakubeit at 5:35 p.m.  
 
2. Task Force Member Introductions  

 
The Mayor and the Special Projects Manager welcomed the members and provided an 
overview of this Task Force.  Roundtable introductions were done by all members and staff.  
Each member provided their perspective on what they love about Penticton, hopes and 
concerns for the future of Penticton and expectations for the OCP process. 
 

- 14 -

willisl
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



Page 2 of 3 
Minutes of April 21, 2017 Official Community Plan Task Force Meeting 

 

3. Adoption of Agenda 
 
 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT the Official Community Plan Task Force adopt the agenda for the meeting held on 
April 20, 2017 as circulated. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4. Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest and Committee Overview 
 

Confidentiality, Conflict of Interest and Commercial Electronic Message Consent Forms were 
distributed to members and collected.  The Committee Secretary provided an overview of the 
forms. 

 
5. New Business 

 
5.1 Terms of Reference 
 
The Terms of Reference were reviewed as circulated.  Discussion followed on the content and 
mandate for the Official Community Plan Task Force.  A concern was raised regarding the 
statement contained in paragraph 8 and its meaning.  Staff to review and consider wording 
that paragraph for clearer understanding.  Item to be brought back to the next meeting. 
 
5.2 Update on Process Guiding Principles, Timelines and Engagement Process to Date 
 
The Special Projects Manager presented an overview of the process and rationale for the OCP 
update.  Key points of what’s in an OCP were noted as follows: 
• City-wide future land use plan 
• Area-specific principles and policies 
• Implementation and monitoring strategies 
 
The five (5) OCP principles were reviewed as follows: 
• Innovative, broad and inclusive engagement 
• Knowledge sharing and capacity building 
• Clarity and openness 
• Sustainability 
• Action while planning 
 
The Special Projects Manager reported staff launched the OCP engagement process with a 
Valentine’s Day blitz at various locations within the City canvassing people on what they loved 
about Penticton.  To date staff had a booth set up at the Home Show as well as information 
posted on the Shape Your City website, Facebook and Twitter.  Booths will also be set up at 
the Downtown Community Market and through public open houses.  Discussion and 
questions followed.  A question was asked if other community OCP’s will be used as a 
reference and if consultants will be hired.  Staff stated the majority of the update will be done 
in house and consultants will be hired for specific items.    Staff noted Abbotsford and 
Squamish have good examples of what a newer OCP should contain.  Staff to send out a link. 
 

  

- 15 -



Page 3 of 3 
Minutes of April 21, 2017 Official Community Plan Task Force Meeting 

 

5.3 Draft Open House Material Review 
 
The Special Projects Manager presented for review and discussion the information boards that 
will be displayed at the various community engagement events noting they are still a work in 
progress.  Discussion followed on the format and questions to be asked.  It was generally 
agreed by the Task Force to keep the questions open ended to allow the public to tell us what 
their priorities are.  The PIB representative recommended an accurate map is displayed clearly 
outlining PIB and Locatee land boundaries in relation to the City of Penticton boundaries and 
stated the importance of PIB involvement in this process.  Other suggestions included using a 
triple bottom line format for the boards and highlighting current projects that are in the 
forefront e.g. YES Project.   
 
5.4 Community Engagement Discussion 
 
The Special Projects Manager stated the City will have a booth set up at the first Downtown 
Farmers Market on May 6, 2017 noting this will be a good test pilot.  Members of this Task 
Force are welcome and are invited to all community engagement events.   
 
5.5 Meeting Date Discussion 
 
Future dates and times were discussed.  It was agreed that Monday evenings are the preferred 
night.  The next meeting was set for May 15, 2017 at 5:30 p.m.  Future meeting dates to be 
discussed at the next meeting.   
 

6. Appointment of Committee Chair & Vice Chair 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Suzanne Moccia be appointed as Chair and Lynn Kelsey be appointed as Vice-Chair for 
the Official Community Plan Task Force for the 2017 term. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7. Next Meeting 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Official Community Plan Task Force will be 
Monday, May 15, 2017 at 5:30 p.m.   
 

8. Adjournment 
  

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Official Community Plan Task Force adjourn the meeting held on Thursday, April 20, 
2017 at 8:28 p.m. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Certified Correct: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Lorraine Williston 
Corporate Committee Secretary 

- 16 -



 

Minutes 
 
 
 
 

Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations  
Committee Meeting  

held at City of Penticton Committee Room A 
171 Main Street, Penticton, B.C. 

 
Friday, April 21, 2017  

at 8:00 a.m. 
 
 
Present: Robin Robertson, Vice-Chair 

Jane Shaak, Okanagan School of the Arts, Shatford Centre Representative 
Paul Crawford, Penticton Art Gallery Representative 
Gerald Kenyon, South Okanagan Performing Arts Representative 
Vaelei Walkden-Brown, Penticton & District Arts Council Representative 
Murray Swales, Member at Large 
Jason Cox, Member at Large 

        
Staff:  Lori Mullin, Recreation and Culture Manager 
  Lorraine Williston, Committee Secretary 
 
   
 
1. Call to Order 
 

The Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee was called to order by the Vice-Chair at 
8:03 a.m. 

 
2. Adoption of Agenda 
 
 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT the Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee adopt the agenda for the meeting 
held on April 21, 2017 as amended (refer to item 4.3). 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

3. Adoption of Minutes 
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee adopt the minutes of the 
December 15, 2016 meeting as circulated. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  

- 17 -

willisl
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



Page 2 of 3 
Minutes of the April 21, 2017 Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee Meeting 

 

4. Business Arising from Prior Meetings 
 
4.1 Valley First Public Sculpture Proposal Update 
 
The Recreation & Culture Manager stated staff require a Council resolution to allocate $18,000 
from the Public Art Reserve Fund to the Valley First public sculpture project before staff can 
move forward with the project that was endorsed by this committee at the October 20, 2016 
meeting.  Through the 2017 budget process, Council did approve $32,000 for the Public Art 
Reserve Fund. Discussion and questions followed. 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED that the Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee 
recommends: 
 
THAT Council approve the allocation of $18,000 from the Public Art Reserve Fund to the 
Valley First Public Sculpture project. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The Recreation & Culture Manager stated the next steps would be to appoint two members 
from this committee to be a part of the committee for this project.  Item to be discussed at a 
future meeting. 
    
4.2 Public Sculpture Project Update 
 
The Vice-Chair reported everything is on schedule.  The sculptures will be installed on May 5 
and the opening will be held on May 6 at 10:00 a.m. in the park beside City Hall.  Artists, media 
and dignitaries will be in attendance for this event.  Committee members are encouraged and 
invited to attend.  The DPA has produced the map showing the locations of the sculptures and 
will be available for distribution at the opening event and for the duration of the exhibition.  
They will be a news release prepared for the opening.  A news release was issued yesterday 
highlighting the artist profiles. 
 
The Vice-Chair asked members to volunteer as artist hosts on May 6 from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 
noon.  Several members were willing to help. Members were also asked for suggestions and 
ideas on ways to promote this event.  Discussion followed. 
 
4.3 Visitor’s Centre Artwork Update  
 
With respect to the removal of the art work from the building that formerly housed the 
Visitor’s Centre, the Recreation & Culture Manager reported that staff did spend considerable 
time in discussions with the new tenant on preserving the art work, however in the end, the 
art did not fit into the branding for the new building and the art was decommissioned.   An 
attempt was made by the Chair to reach out to the artist to discuss the process and get 
feedback, however a response was never received.      
 

5. New Business 
 

6. Art Funding Opportunities 
 
The Penticton & District Arts Council representative provided some information on a recent 
workshop on how to build a better relationship with sponsors that was put on by artsVest, an 
organization which provides matching dollars for organizations involved and a service they 
have recently signed up for that aides in sourcing/finding grants.   

- 18 -



Page 3 of 3 
Minutes of the April 21, 2017 Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee Meeting 

 

The Vice-Chair stated she has established a fund through Community Foundations of the 
South Okanagan-Similkameen specifically to be used for public art and is looking for ways 
help to raise funds.  If anyone has any suggestions, please let her know. 
 

Murray Swales left at 8:33 a.m. 
 

7. Representative Updates  
 
7.1 Okanagan School of the Arts, Shatford Centre 
 
The Okanagan School of the Arts, Shatford Centre representative reported on upcoming 
events and noted they are currently working on new branding.  The next project will be 
improving the grounds around the building and noted the sculpture in the front was recently 
donated to the centre. 

 
7.2 Penticton Art Gallery 
 
The Penticton Art Gallery representative reported that the current exhibition doing well.   The 
Art Gallery was recently interviewed by the Canadian Art magazine about their pot show.  The 
Syrian art show will be heading next to Grand Forks and the Calgary War Museum.  The 
Tibetan monks will be coming back to Penticton in September.  
 
7.3 Penticton & District Community Arts Council 
 
The Penticton & District Community Arts Council representative reported on their upcoming 
events including the Arts Arising Festival noting they have received good media sponsorship 
for this event.  Additional information is available on their website.  An update was provided 
with respect to the Penticton Regional Hospital’s Art Committee and its upcoming projects.    
 

Jane Shaak left at 8:43 a.m. 
 

7.4 South Okanagan Performing Arts Centre 
 

The SOPAC representative reported SOPAC cannot move forward with any planning until they 
receive a decision from Council regarding the Nanaimo Avenue property.   
  

8. Council Outcome 
 

Council Resolutions 14/2107, 15, 2017 and 16/2017 from the minutes dated December 15, 
2016 were received.   
 

9. Next Meeting 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee 
to be determined. 
 

10. Adjournment 
 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee adjourn the meeting held on Friday, 
April 21, 2017at 8:50 a.m. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

- 19 -



Arts, Creative &  
Cultural Innovations Committee 

Council Recommendation 

- 20 -



Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee 
• Allison Markin, Chair, Member at Large 
• Robin Robertson, Vice-Chair, Member at Large 
• Vaelei Walkden-Brown, Penticton Arts Council 
• Paul Crawford, Penticton Art Gallery 
• Jane Shaak, Okanagan School of the Arts, Shatford Centre 
• Gerald Kenyon, SOPAC 
• Tracey Kim Bonneau, E’nowkin Centre 
• Murray Swales, Member at Large 
• Jason Cox, Member  at Large 
• Councillor Campbell Watt 

- 21 -



Canada 150 Mosaic Tile Project - 22 -



- 23 -



Valley First Public Sculpture Project 

Objective:   
The City of Penticton and Valley First work 
jointly on implementing an art piece for the 
corner of Westminster Avenue and Main Street 
to complement Valley First and the 
beautification and enjoyment of the city. 

- 24 -



Valley First Public Sculpture Project 

Background: 
• As part of the downtown revitalization project, the City offered Valley First 

$18,000 for the purchase of 38.8 sq.m of sidewalk space directly in front of 
the Valley First entrance which Valley First accepted. 

• The City approached Valley First to see if there would be interest in Valley 
First contributing the $18,000 to go towards an art piece to be located on 
that land. 

• Valley First agreed to provide matching funds of up to $18,000 for this 
program. 

• A Proposal was drafted which was agreed upon by the City staff and Valley 
First and was endorsed by the City’s Arts, Creative and Cultural 
Innovations Committee. 
 

- 25 -



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

- 26 -



Public Art Reserve Funding 

As part of the 2017 Budget Process, Council 
allocated $32,000 to the Public Art Reserve.    
 
The current balance in the Arts Reserve is 
$42,011. 

- 27 -



Recommendation 

2017-04-21    It was MOVED and SECONDED that 
the Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations 
Committee recommends: 
 

THAT Council approve the allocation of $18,000 
from the Public Art Reserve Fund to the Valley First 
Public Sculpture project. 

 

- 28 -



- 29 -



- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



 

 

 

 

 

304 - 1353 Ellis Street, Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1Z9  |  T: 250.762.2517 

Date: August 8, 2016 

To: Ian Chapman, P.Eng. -City of Penticton 

cc: James Donnelly 

From: Natasha Elliott 

File: 1017.0053.16 

Subject: Atkinson St and Granby Ave Crosswalk Warrant -2016 Crosswalk Warrants and Design 

Reviews 

Atkinson Street and Granby Avenue  

This memo is part of a series of 2016 memos that summarize the pedestrian crossing control warrants 

and/or design reviews completed for various locations identified by the City of Penticton. The 2012 TAC 

Pedestrian Crossing Control Guide has been used for all pedestrian crossing warrants and the TAC Stop 

Control Warrant in the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Canada has been applied for the 

intersection control reviews. 

The application of the 2012 Pedestrian Crossing Control Guide is a two-step process. The first step is a 

flow chart that takes into account the following factors: 

 Whether a traffic signal is warranted,  

 Average hourly pedestrian volume (threshold is 15 Equivalent Adult Units (EAUs)), 

 Vehicular volume (threshold is 1,500 vehicles/day), 

 Pedestrian desire lines or if there is a requirement for system connectivity, and  

 Distance from another traffic control device (threshold is 100m to 200m, depending upon 

jurisdictional norms and local characteristics). 

The result of using the flow chart is a preliminary assessment which indicates whether or not the site is a 

candidate for pedestrian crossing control. Then, if pedestrian crossing control is warranted, there is a 

treatment selection matrix. The treatment selection matrix considers the following factors: 

 Average daily traffic (1500 < ADT ≤ 4500, 4500 < ADT ≤ 9000, 9000 < ADT ≤ 12000, 12000 < ADT ≤ 

15000, or ADT >15000), 

 Speed limit ( ≤50km/h, 60km/h, or 70km/h), and 

 Total number of lanes (1 or 2 lanes, 3 lanes, 2 or 3 lanes per direction with raised refuge, or 2 

lanes per direction without raised refuge). 

Based on these three factors, the warrant will recommend a crosswalk with side-mounted signs, crosswalk 

with overhead-mounted signs, special crosswalk, or traffic signal. 

 

- 33 -



MEMORANDUM 

Date: August 8, 2016 

File: 1017.0053.16 

Subject: Atkinson St and Granby Ave Crosswalk Warrant -2016 Crosswalk Warrants and 

Design Reviews 

Page: 2 of  3 

 

 

There is currently no marked crossing on Atkinson Street at Granby Avenue. Atkinson Street has one 

through lane in each direction with parking permitted on both sides. The carriageway has a total width of 

12m. The main focus of this analysis is to determine if a marked pedestrian crossing is warranted. The 

nearest pedestrian crossing control device is the zebra crossing located at the intersection of Atkinson 

Street and Duncan Avenue. 

Data Collection  

A 7-hour traffic and pedestrian count was completed on August 19, 2016 between 8am and 3:30pm with 

a 30-minute break. Table 1, below, summarizes the pedestrian and vehicular data. This corresponds to an 

average of 3.5 Equivalent Adult Unit (EAU) pedestrians per hour crossing Atkinson Street and an ADT of 

5800 vehicles.  

Table 1: Pedestrian and Vehicle Volumes 

User 7-hour Total 

Adults 17 

Seniors  5 

Total EAU Pedestrians 25 

Vehicles 2950 

 
Crossing Warrant 

Table 2 summarizes the site characteristics used to determine whether this site is a candidate for 

pedestrian crossing control.  

Table 2: Site Characteristics 

Site Characteristic Value 

Is a traffic signal warranted at this location? No 

Average Hourly Pedestrian Volume (EAUs) 3.5 

Vehicular Volume (veh/day) 5,800 

Distance from another traffic control device (m) 175 

d value for jurisdiction (100-200m) 100 

Is this location on pedestrian desire line or is there 
requirement for system connectivity? 

No 

 

 

- 34 -



MEMORANDUM 

Date: August 8, 2016 

File: 1017.0053.16 

Subject: Atkinson St and Granby Ave Crosswalk Warrant -2016 Crosswalk Warrants and 

Design Reviews 

Page: 3 of  3 

 

 

This location is a not a candidate for pedestrian crossing control. The two critical factors that result in this 

site not being a candidate for pedestrian crossing control are: 

 the average hourly pedestrian volume is too low (needs to be at least 15 EAU compared to the 

current 3.5 EAU), and 

 the site is not located on a pedestrian desire line.  

If either, the average hourly pedestrian volume was 15 EAU, or the site was located on a pedestrian desire 

line, then the location would be a candidate for pedestrian crossing control.  

If the City of Penticton wishes to implement a new pedestrian crossing control despite the site not being 

a candidate, the recommended treatment is a crosswalk with side mounted signs. Table 3, below, 

summarizes the treatment selection characteristics. 

Table 3: Treatment Selection Parameters 

Treatment Selection Tool Questions Value 

What is the vehiclular volume? 4500 < ADT ≤ 9000 

What is the speed limit? ≤50 

How many lanes? 1 or 2 lanes 

  

 

Sincerely, 

 

URBAN SYSTEMS LTD.       

         Reviewed by:   

   

 

 

Natasha Elliott, EIT       James Donnelly, P.Eng., PTOE 

Transportation Engineer      Sr. Transportation Engineer 

 

 

 
U:\Projects_KEL\1017\0053\16\R-Reports-Studies-Documents\R1-Reports\2016-08-04-MEMO-04 Atkinson and Granby Warrant.docx 

- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



- 46 -



- 47 -



- 48 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:     
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Mitch Moroziuk, General Manager of Infrastructure 

Subject: Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-36  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-36”, a 
bylaw to amend Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07 to set new Transit Fares effective July 1, 2017. 

Strategic priority objective   

The recommendation supports the strategic pillar of Sustainability by setting Transit fees that balance the 
needs of the City of Penticton with the ability of citizens to pay and by creating a regional transit fare 
structure.   

Background 

On February 28, 2017 Council supported, via Council Resolution 143/2017, see Attachment “B”, the move to 
a consolidated Regional Riders Guide, a comprehensive and consistent menu of fares and fare products for 
local, regional and inter-regional transit services, and the adoption of service standards and route 
performance guidelines for transit services within and outside of Penticton.  

The above was subsequently endorsed by the other member municipalities and the Regional District and it 
is now time to complete the required amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw.  

Financial implication 

The financial impact of the new fare structure was calculated by BC Transit and is expected to increase 
revenues to Penticton by 13% or $41,940 per year. 

Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council provide alternate direction to staff. 

Attachments 

Attachment “A” – Fees and Charges Amendments 
Attachment “B” – Council Resolution 143/2017  
 

- 49 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 5 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Mitch Moroziuk P.Eng. MBA 
General Manager of Infrastructure 
City of Penticton 
 

 

Approvals 

CAO 
 

PW 

 

 

  

- 50 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 5 

Attachment “A” – Fees and Charges Amendments 

Appendix 27 
Transit 

 

CONVENTIONAL TRANSIT 

Cash Fares 

  Effective 2014 Effective July 1 2017 
1 Adult $2.00 Not Applicable  
2 Senior (with valid BC Pharmacare card) $1.75 Not Applicable 
3 Student (to Grade 12 with valid ID card) $1.75 Not Applicable 
4 Child (aged 6 and under) Free Not Applicable 
5 Local Fare Not Applicable $2.25 
6 Regional Fare Not Applicable $4.00 
Book of Ten Tickets 

  Effective 2014 Effective July 1 2017 
7 Adult $15.00 Not Applicable 
8 Senior or Student $12.50 Not Applicable 
9 Local Fare Not Applicable $20.25 

10 Regional Fare Not Applicable $36.00 
Monthly Passes 

  Effective 2014 Effective July 1 2017 
11 Adult $45.00 Not Applicable 
12 Senior (with valid BC Pharmacare card) $32.00 Not Applicable 
13 Student (to Grade 12 with valid ID card) $27.00 Not Applicable 

14 
Post-Secondary 1 Student (with proof of 
attendance) 

$38.00 Not Applicable 

15 Local Fare Not Applicable $45.00 
16 Regional Fare Not Applicable $60.00 
17 Discounted 2 Local Fare Not Applicable $35.00 
18 Discounted 2 Regional  Fare Not Applicable $40.00 

19 

Note 1 Effective 2014 - Post Secondary institution refers to universities, vocational universities, 
community colleges, liberal arts colleges, institutes of technology and other collegiate level 
institutions, such as vocational schools, trade schools and career colleges that award academic 
degrees or professional certifications.  

20 

Note 2 Effective July 1 2017- Discounted Fares counts apply to: Seniors over 65 years of age with 
valid ID; Students 20 or under in full-time attendance to Grade 12 with valid ID; Post-secondary with 
proof of attendance.  Post-Secondary institution refers to universities, vocational universities, 
community colleges, liberal arts colleges, institutes of technology and other collegiate level 
institutions, such as vocational schools, trade schools and career colleges that award academic 
degrees or professional certifications. 

 

- 51 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 5 

 

CONVENTIONAL TRANSIT Continued 

Day Pass 

  Effective 2014 Effective July 1 2017 
21 Adult $4.00 Not Applicable 
22 Senior / Student $3.50 Not Applicable 
23 Local Fare Not Applicable $4.50 
24 Regional Fare Not Applicable $8.00 
 

CUSTOM TRANSIT 

Cash Fares 

  Effective 2014 Effective July 1 2017 
25 Adult $2.00 $2.00 
26 Child (aged 6 and under) Free Free 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 52 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 

Attachment “B” – Council Resolution 143/2017 

 

8.4 Regional Transit Integration Project 
 

143/2017   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council support moving to an integrated Regional Riders Guide for 
Conventional Transit as contained in Attachment “A”; 
AND THAT Council support a consistent Fare Strategy in the Region as contained in 
Table 4 of the Background section of this Council Report; 
AND THAT Council support the Service Design Standards and Performance Guidelines 
as contained in Attachment “B”;  
AND THAT staff bring back an amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw at the 
appropriate time to support the new Fare Strategy; 
AND FURTHER THAT Council authorize the General Manager of Infrastructure to 
execute the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Penticton and BC 
Transit, as contained in Attachment “C”, to facilitate the implementation of Regional 
Transit Guide and new Fare Strategy. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 53 -



Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-36  Page 1 of 1 
 

 
The Corporation of the City of Penticton 

 
Bylaw No. 2017-36 

 
A bylaw to amend the Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07 

 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Fees and Charges Bylaw pursuant to the 
Community Charter; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend the “Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07”; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 

 
 This Bylaw may be cited as “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-36”.  
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Amend “Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07” by deleting and replacing the following 
appendix in its entirety: 

 

- Appendix 27 – Transit 
 

 
2.2 Appendix 27 attached hereto forms part of this bylaw.  
 
 
 

READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

    

 
 

   

 

       
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
        
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer  

- 54 -



Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07
Appendix 27 - Page 1 of 2

TRANSIT
Effective 

2014
Effective July 

1, 2017

CONVENTIONAL TRANSIT

Cash Fares

Adult $2.00

Senior (with valid BC Pharmacare card) $1.75

Student (to Grade 12 with valid ID card) $1.75

Child (aged 6 and under) Free

Local Fare $2.25

$4.00

Book of Ten Tickets

Adult $15.00

Senior or Student $12.50

Local Fare $20.25

Regional Fare $36.00

Monthly Passes

Adult $45.00

Senior (with valid BC Pharmacare card) $32.00

Student (to Grade 12 with valid ID card) $27.00

Post Secondary Student (with proof of attendance) $38.00

Semester pass (4 months) $120.00

Local Fare $45.00

Regional Fare $60.00

Discounted Local Fare $35.00

Discounted Regional Fare $40.00

Appendix 27

Discounted Fares apply to: Seniors over 65 years of age with valid ID; Students 20 or under in full-time attendance to 
Grade 12 with valid ID; Post-Secondary with proof of attendance.  Post-Secondary institution refers to universities, 
vocational universities, community colleges, liberal arts colleges, institues of technology and other collegieate level 
institiution, such as vocational schools, trade schools and career colleges that award academic degrees or professional 
certifications.

- 55 -



Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 2014-07
Appendix 27 - Page 2 of 2

TRANSIT
Effective 

2014
Effective July 

1, 2017

Appendix 27

Day Passes

Adult $4.00

Senior/Student $3.50

Local Fare $4.50

Regional Fare $8.00

CUSTOM TRANSIT

Cash Fares

Adult $2.00 $2.00

Child (aged 6 and under) Free Free

- 56 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:     
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Mitch Moroziuk, General Manager of Infrastructure 
Subject: Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund Grant Application Facilities GIS 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council endorses a grant application to the Capacity Building Stream of the Gas Tax Strategic Priorities 
Fund to create a Building Facility GIS Database; 

AND THAT the Building Facility GIS Database project be included in the 2018 budget showing 100% grant 
funding;  

AND FURTHER THAT the General Manager of Infrastructure and the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to 
sign any required forms related to the grant application. 

Strategic priority objective 

This project supports the City’s Strategic Pillar of Sustainable by planning for future infrastructure renewal 
and the City’s Strategic Pillar of Smart by providing access to information that will yield a fact, risk, and 
consequence based plan for decisions, infrastructure and facilities (example: service levels). 

Background 

UBCM has announced a June intake for the Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund.  Eligible projects under the 
Capacity Building Stream include Asset Management, Long-Term Infrastructure Planning, and Integrated 
Community Sustainability Planning. There is an application limit of one capacity building project. The grant 
will fund up to 100% of the net eligible costs of approved projects up to a maximum federal Gas Tax fund 
contribution of $6,000,000. The application deadline is June 1, 2017.  

Staff have reviewed possible projects and feel that the most appropriate project would be a project that 
would see the City Building Facilities incorporated into our GIS system.   

Financial implication 

The cost to incorporate the City Building Facilities into our GIS system is estimated at $30,000. Submitting a 
grant application will make the City eligible to receive up to $30,000 in grant funding. 

 

- 57 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

Analysis 

Passing of the resolution will make the grant eligible for consideration under the grant submission process 
and open the possibility for grant funding. 

Should Council choose they could provide alternate direction to staff. 

Alternate recommendations 

THAT Council provide alternate direction to staff.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Mitch Moroziuk P.Eng. MBA 
General Manager of Infrastructure 
 

Approvals 

CAO CFO 

PW 
 

JWB 

 

- 58 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:     
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Mitch Moroziuk, General Manager of Infrastructure 
Subject: Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund Grant Application Arena 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council endorses a grant application to the Capital Infrastructure Project Stream of the Gas Tax 
Strategic Priorities Fund to either upgrade Memorial Arena or to build a new arena; 

AND THAT once the Penticton Arena Task Force has made their recommendation to Council on how to 
proceed with arena upgrading or replacement that the grant application be updated to reflect the 
recommendation; 

AND THAT the Arena upgrade / replacement project be included in the 2018 budget and that any funding 
required in excess of $6,000,000 be funded by the City of Penticton through reserves, other grants, 
borrowing, donations and/or funding partners as recommended by the Arena Task Force and endorsed by 
Council; 

AND FURTHER THAT the Manager of Facilities and the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to sign any 
required forms related to the grant application. 

Strategic priority objective 

This project supports the City’s Strategic Pillar of Sustainable by planning for future infrastructure renewal 
and the City’s Strategic Pillar of Livable by maintaining recreation and culture services and facilities that 
balance need and ability to fund. 

Background 

UBCM has announced a June intake for the Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund.  Eligible projects under the 
Capital Infrastructure Project Stream include Public Transit: Local Roads and Bridges; Community Energy 
Systems; Drinking Water; Solid Waste; Wastewater; Highways and Major Roads; Local and Regional Airports; 
Short-Line Rail; Short-Sea Shipping; Broadband Connectivity; Brownfield Redevelopment; Disaster 
Mitigation; and Cultural, Tourism, Sport and Recreation Infrastructure. There is an application limit of two 
capital infrastructure projects. The grant will fund up to 100% of the net eligible costs of approved projects 
up to a maximum federal Gas Tax fund contribution of $6,000,000. The application deadline is June 1, 2017.  

- 59 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

 

As preparatory work the staff examined several candidate projects: 

• New Arena or an upgrade to Memorial Arena, estimated cost $7,000,000 to 16,000,000;  
• Main Street 300 Block revitalization, estimated cost $3,030,000; 
• Main Street Industrial to  Warren failing infrastructure replacement and incorporation of a bike trail 

or multi use path, estimated cost $3,000,000 to 5,000,000 of which $1,500,000 is land acquisition and 
not eligible for grant funding; 

• Kinney Avenue and Main Street intersection estimated cost $3,500,000 of which $1,500,000 is land 
acquisition and not eligible for grant funding; 

• An underground infrastructure project to replace  undersized or failing mains estimated cost 
$6,000,000; 

• Penticton Creek Naturalization Front Street to Ellis Street estimated cost $4,650,000 to $5,000,000; 
and 

Staff have reviewed possible projects and feel that the most appropriate project to advance for a grant is 
either to upgrade or replace Memorial Arena.  The reasons are as follows: 

• The Draft Parks and Recreation Master Plan supports the replacement / renovation of Memorial 
Arena with minimal disruption to user groups; 

• The Memorial arena project is the most advanced in terms of gathering cost estimates, letters of 
support, timelines and feasibility studies including technical and design information to meet the 
scoring and selection criteria as documented in the grant program guidelines; 

• The Asset Management Plan indicates that: 
o The biggest gap between what we should be spending and what we are spending is General 

Funded Infrastructure of which Facilities is  a large component; 
o That the largest Infrastructure Deficit is in the Facility area $22,900,000 to $26,500,000; and 
o That the Average Annual Life Cycle Investment for Facilities, the highest of all categories,  

should be 4,700,000 to $7,100,000;    
• The Memorial Arena project is the largest and most costly recommendation in the Draft Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan and will allow us to maximize our access to grant money. 

Staff also do not recommend applying for more than one Capital project so as to not dilute our chances for 
the Memorial arena project.   

Staff have spoken to representatives from UBCM to explain our situation, i.e. that at this time we do not 
know if we will rebuild or replace Memorial Arena.  The advice we received was to apply for a grant to either 
rebuild or replace, indicate that the land is in place, indicate that the Penticton Arena Task Force is 
evaluating the options and will be making a recommendation to Council and that once this 
recommendation is made the City will revise our grant application accordingly.  UBCM did indicate that we 
should get the revision in as soon as possible, ideally by end of July 2017.  

Financial implication 

The order of magnitude costing to upgrade or replace Memorial Arena is estimated to be between 
$7,000,000 and $16,000,000 in capital costs.  Estimates are currently being refined to get more accurate 

- 60 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

numbers. Submitting a grant application will make the City eligible to receive up to $6,000,000 in grant 
funding. 

Analysis 

Passing of the resolution will make the grant eligible for consideration under the grant submission process 
and open the possibility for grant funding. 

Should Council choose they could provide alternate direction to staff. 

Alternate recommendations 

THAT Council provide alternate direction to staff.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Mitch Moroziuk P.Eng. MBA 
General Manager of Infrastructure 
 

Approvals 

CAO CFO 

PW 
 

JWB 

 

- 61 -



 

Council Report 
 

 

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:     
To: Peter Webber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Mitch Moroziuk, General Manager of Infrastructure 
Subject: Warren Avenue Oxbow Servicing Agreement Amendment 

 

Staff recommendation 

THAT Council approve the Warren Avenue Oxbow Servicing Termination Agreement with the Penticton 
Indian Band as contained in Attachment “B”; 

AND THAT Council approve the Warren Avenue Oxbow Servicing Agreement with Warren Avenue 
Development Corporation to provide City electricity, sanitary sewer and water services to the Warren 
Avenue Oxbow lands as contained in Attachment “C”; 

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to execute both of these agreements. 

Strategic priority objective 

The Recommendation supports the Strategic Pillar of Sustainable by providing shared services to the 
Penticton Indian Band and the Strategic Pillar of Liveable by allowing the developer to bring forty eight (48) 
dwelling units into the housing inventory. 

Background 

On October 3, 2011 Council passed Resolution 868/2011, see Attachment “A” approving entering into an 
agreement with the Penticton Indian Band to provide municipal services to the Warren Avenue Oxbow 
lands.  The Agreement saw the City providing water, sanitary sewer, fire protection as well as the possibility 
of electrical and building inspection services if requested by the Band for a term of 25 years.  The agreement 
allows for residential / commercial / park development to take place.  

Subsequent to the signing of that agreement the City has been in discussion with the Penticton Indian Band 
and The Warren Avenue Development Corporation for the last 5 years and the involved parties would like to 
alter the terms of the agreement as well as change who the City would enter into an agreement with. 

The 2011 agreement is between the City of Penticton and the Penticton Indian Band. There is also a lease 
agreement between the Warren Avenue Development Corporation and the Locatee Land owner and there 
would need to be a third agreement between the Penticton Indian Band and the Warren Avenue 
Development Corporation which would transfer responsibilities under the City of Penticton / Penticton 
Indian Band Agreement from the Penticton Indian Band to the Warren Avenue Development Corporation.  

- 62 -



Council Report  Page 2 of 6 
 

In short the Penticton Indian Band is a middle man in an agreement that really sees the City providing 
services to the Warren Avenue Development Corporation and as such they would like to be removed from 
the arrangement.  The Termination Agreement contained in Attachment “B” achieves this.  The Termination 
Agreement has been executed by the Penticton Indian Band.  

In order to have an agreement that is workable for the City, the Penticton Indian Band and the Warren 
Avenue Development Corporation some changes are required to the original 2011 agreement.  They are as 
follows: 

1. Delete the requirement to pay an Offsite Service Charge (Tax Equivalent Payment).  The Penticton 
Indian Band is the taxing authority over the Warren Avenue Oxbow lands.  The way the 2011 
agreement is structured it would see the Warren Avenue Development Corporation paying the City a 
Tax Equivalent Payment and the Penticton Indian Band property taxes.  This creates a situation where 
the developer of the lands is in a non-competitive position as compared to adjacent properties that 
pay taxes to only one authority; 

2. Delete provision of fire protection.  This is covered under the existing March 1, 2015 Fire Services 
Agreement between the City of Penticton and the Penticton Indian Band and duplication is not 
required; 

3. Delete the requirement for the Developer to pay a 10% premium for water. 
4. Require that each unit on the development lands be metered for electricity and water and that there 

be a shut off for water and electricity for each unit; 
5. Require that the City bill each customer in the development lands directly. Bills would be branded City 

of Penticton;  
6. Replace of the provision of a Letter of Credit as security for non-payment with a provision in the 

agreement that in the event of non-payment by a customer the City will bill the Developer directly 
and the Developer will pay the City within 30 days.  In the event that the Developer does not pay the 
City within 30 days the City has the right to disconnect water, sanitary sewer or electrical services to 
the lands; 

7. Require that the City be provided a no cost easement prior to the start of service provision so that it 
could maintain the electrical system on the lands and so that it could read the electrical and water 
meters and terminate water and electrical service in the event of non-payment; 

8. Eliminate the payment of the Parks DCC to a Park Fund jointly managed by the City and the Penticton 
Indian Band. The DCC payment would come directly to the City; 

9. The City would own and be responsible to maintain electrical infrastructure saving and excepting 
street lighting and privately owned service conductors; 

10. The Developer would be responsible to maintain all other onsite infrastructure (water, sanitary sewer, 
storm, roads, sidewalk, street lighting etc.);  

11. The Warren Avenue Development Corporation will be responsible to undertake or pay to have the 
City undertake an evaluation of the impact of the proposed development on City Infrastructure 
outside of the development area.  Any required upgrades required to City Infrastructure outside of the 
development area will be made by the Warren Avenue Development Corporation at their cost. 
 

The Agreement contained in Attachment “B” is now between the City of Penticton and the Warren Avenue 
Oxbow Corporation and has incorporated the above noted points into the 2011 agreement. 

- 63 -



Council Report  Page 3 of 6 
 

Financial implication 

The loss of the 10% premium on water estimated at $2,650 per year.  The loss due to the removal of the 
requirement to pay the Offsite Service Fee is calculated to be $0.00 as the development would not take 
place with this provision contained in the agreement.  

Analysis 

The City, the Penticton Indian Band and the Developer have been in discussions for some time to arrive at a 
workable solution for all parties that would see the Warren Avenue Oxbow land develop.  The proposed 
development would create some 48 residential lots.  

The agreements contained in Attachment “B” and “C” achieve a workable solution for all parties and is now 
ready for the consideration of Council. 

Should Council choose they could provide staff with specific direction on changes that they would like to 
see to the two agreements. 

Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council provide specific directions to staff as to changes that they would like to see in the Warren 
Avenue Oxbow Agreements. 

Attachments 

Attachment “A” – Council Resolution 868/2011 
Attachment “B” – City Penticton Indian Band Termination Agreement 
Attachment “C” – City Warren Avenue Development Corporation Warren Avenue Servicing Agreement 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Mitch Moroziuk P.Eng. MBA 
General Manager of Infrastructure 
 

Approvals 

CAO 
 

PW 
 

 
 

  

- 64 -



Council Report  Page 4 of 6 
 

Attachment “A” – Council Resolution 868/2011 

5.3 Penticton Indian Band – Servicing Agreement 
 

868/2011 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council ratify the attached Servicing Agreement between 
the City of Penticton and the Penticton Indian Band for Warren 
Avenue Oxbow which was endorsed at the September 17, 2011 
in-camera meeting of Council. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 65 -



Council Report  Page 5 of 6 
 

Attachment “B” – City Penticton Indian Band Termination Agreement 

2017 05 23 Attachment B to Warren Ave agreement.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 66 -



Council Report  Page 6 of 6 
 

Attachment “C” – City Warren Avenue Development Corporation Warren Avenue Servicing 
Agreement 

2017 05 23 Attachment C to Warren Ave agreement.pdf 

- 67 -



- 68 -



- 69 -



- 70 -



- 71 -



- 72 -



- 73 -



- 74 -



- 75 -



- 76 -



- 77 -



- 78 -



- 79 -



- 80 -



- 81 -



- 82 -



- 83 -



- 84 -



- 85 -



- 86 -



- 87 -



- 88 -



- 89 -



- 90 -



- 91 -



- 92 -



- 93 -



- 94 -



- 95 -



 

 
Council Report 

 
 

 

Date: May 23, 2017                   File No:   RMS  
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Michael Hodges, Development Engineer 
 
Subject: Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72  
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council rescind third reading of “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72”, a bylaw 
to amend “Development Cost Charges Bylaw No. 2007-79”,  

AND THAT Council give third reading as amended to “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 
2016-72”, amending Section 8 as recommended by the Inspector of Municipalities;  

AND THAT in accordance with Section 560 of the Local Government Act, the bylaw be forwarded to the 
Inspector of Municipalities for approval.  

Strategic Priority Objectives 

Development Cost Charges are a way to ensure that new development does not create a capital cost burden 
on the existing city taxpayers. An efficient and fair DCC program can promote development and lead to a 
more fiscally secure asset management program.  
 
Background 

Council provided third reading to the “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw 2016-72” and this was 
forwarded to the Inspector of Municipalities for approval. A minor change was requested to ensure the 
proposed changes confirmed with the overarching legislation. 

This amendment to Bylaw 2016-72 changes a single section: Section 8. The intent of Section 8 is to close the 
loophole allowing duplex’s to be constructed on Multi Family Zoned parcels without being subject to DCC’s. 
This amendment to “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw 2016-72” clarifies this intent and 
specifically references the Section with the Local Government Act that is being affected. It was the opinion of 
the Inspector of Municipalities that the specific reference to the Local Government Act would be required.   

Proposal 

Staff are proposing that Council Amend bylaw 2016-72 to ensure it is compliant with the intention of the 
original Staff recommendation and the comments made by the Inspector of Municipalities.  

In Bylaw 2016-72 Staff proposed the following change to section 8. 

- 96 -



 Council Report  Page 2 of 3 
 

   

Amend Section 8 

Delete existing 

Development cost charges will be imposed at the time of building permit issuance on the 
number of residential dwelling units over two units in any building and/or mobile home. 

Replace with 

Development cost charges will be imposed at the time of building permit issuance on the 
number of residential dwelling units in any building and/or mobile home, on a parcel that 
are not Single Family Zoned or Duplex Zoned. 

Section 561 of the Local Government Act details an exemption that Development Cost Charges are not 
payable if the building permit is for less than 4 dwelling units.  

Currently any developer that constructs a duplex on a multi-family zoned lot does not pay Development 
Cost Charges if they submit the building permits for each duplex separately. So if a Developer were to build 
a fourplex a DCC would apply, but if one were to build two duplexes, DCCs would not apply. This was not 
the intent of the DCC Bylaw. 

It was Staff’s intention was to close this loophole as it was being exploited to avoid DCC’s. The Inspector of 
Municipalities saw no concerns with closing this exemption, but felt it was important to specifically 
reference this exemption and that it will no longer apply.  

The amended Section 8 is as follows. 

Amend Section 8  

Delete existing 

Development cost charges will be imposed at the time of building permit issuance on the 
number of residential dwelling units over two units in any building and/or mobile home. 

Replace with 

Development cost charges will be imposed at the time of building permit issuance on the 
number of residential dwelling units in any building and/or mobile home, on a parcel that 
is not Single Family Zoned or Duplex Zoned. The exemption under 561 (5) of the Local 
Government Act does not apply, and Development Cost Charges are payable on all dwelling 
units, including if the building permit is for less than 4 dwelling units. 

 

Financial Implications 

None 
 

- 97 -



 Council Report  Page 3 of 3 
 

   

Analysis 
 
Support 

These minor amendments to the DCC bylaw are intended to make the bylaw easier to use and to apply 
DCC’s in a fair and transparent way.  

 
Deny / refer 
 
Council may feel that some or all of the proposed amendments are not in the public interest. If that is the 
case, Council may amend the bylaw prior to giving first reading or refer the bylaw back to staff for further 
research as directed by Council.  
 
 
Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council deny third reading of “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw 2016-72” as 
amended. 

2. THAT Council support “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw 2016-72” as amended with 
conditions that Council feels are appropriate. 

Attachments 

Attachment A: Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Michael Hodges 
Development Engineer 

 

Approvals 

Director 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

AH 

 
PW 

 

 
 

- 98 -



 
 

Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72 Page 1 of 3 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2016-72 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Development Cost Charges Bylaw 2007-79 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Development Cost Charges Bylaw pursuant the 
Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Development Cost Charges Bylaw 2007-79;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw  
 No. 2016-72”. 
 
2. Amendments: 
 

Development Cost Charges Bylaw 2007-79 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
2.1 Delete and replace section 2 with the following: 
 ADMINISTRATION 
 
 2. The Director of Development Services is hereby appointed to administer this bylaw. 
 
 
2.2 Delete and replace the following existing definitions from section 3: 
 
 DEFINITIONS 
 

 “boarding home” is defined as a building in which the owner or manager supplies 
accommodation and/or sleeping unit accommodation for remuneration.  It may or may not 
include meal service.  It includes lodges for senior citizens but does not include hotels, motels, 
temporary shelter services, congregate housing, or bed and breakfast homes. 
 
“development” means the increase in commercial, industrial or institutional floor area; or the 
construction of dwellings. 
 
“Director of Development Services” means the Director of Development Services of the City or 
an authorized representative. 
 
“institutional” means development in the Public Assembly land use zones as designated in the 
Zoning Bylaw and boarding homes that provide sleeping units only, not dwelling units. 

 
“parcel” refer to “lot” definition. 
 
“Zoning Bylaw” means the City Zoning Bylaw No. 2011-23 as amended from time to time. 

- 99 -



 
 

Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72 Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 2.3 Delete the definition for “gross floor area” and replace with the following definition: 

“floor area” means the total floor area of all storeys of all buildings or structures with a clear 
ceiling height of 1.8 meters or more, measured from the outside face of the exterior walls. This 
does not include the following sub-areas: 

• Garages, other enclosed or open parking areas 
• balconies, decks  and patios. 

 
 2.4 Add the following new definitions: 

“duplex zoned lot” is a lot that is currently zoned RD1 or RD2 in accordance with the Zoning 
Bylaw. 
“single family zoned lot” is a lot that is currently zoned R1, R2 or R3 in accordance with the 
Zoning Bylaw. 
“lot” means a parcel of land, including Crown Land, which is legally defined either by registered 
plan or legal description. 

 
 2.5 Delete the definition for “net increase in floor area” and replace with the following definition: 

“increase in floor area” means the difference between the floor area that exists on the 
development lands at the time a building permit is issued and the amount that will exist when 
the construction authorized by the building permit has been completed, and in the case of 
development lands in respect of which a demolition permit has been issued within a 24 month 
period immediately preceding the issuance of the building permit, or the difference between 
the greatest gross floor area that existed on the development lands within that 24 month 
period and the gross floor area that will exist on the development lands when the construction 
authorized by the building permit has been completed. 

  
  2.6 Delete the definition “senior citizens boarding home”. 
 
  2.7 Delete and replace with the following: 
 
   SUBSTANTIVE PROVISIONS 
 

4. Every person who obtains approval of a subdivision of a parcel of land under the Land 
Title Act or the creation of a bare land strata under the Strata Property Act shall pay to the City at 
the time of approval of the subdivision the applicable development cost charges as set out in 
Schedule “A1”, Schedule “A2” and Schedule “B” and in accordance with Sector Map “A”, Sector 
Map “B1” and Sector Map “B2”. 
 
5. Except as provided in the Local Government Act, every person who obtains a building 
permit shall pay to the City at the time of issuance of the building permit the applicable 
development cost charges as set out in Schedule “A1”, Schedule “A2” and Schedule “B” and in 
accordance with Sector Map “A”, Sector Map” B1” and Sector Map “B2”. 

 
7. Development cost charges will be imposed at the time of building permit issuance on 
the basis of the increase in floor area of commercial, industrial and institutional development, as 
the case may be. 

- 100 -



 
 

Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2016-72 Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
8. Development cost charges will be imposed at the time of building permit issuance on 
the number of residential dwelling units in any building and/or mobile home, on a parcel that is 
not Single Family Zoned or Duplex Zoned.  The exemption under 561 (5) of the Local 
Government Act does not apply, and Development Cost Charges are payable on all dwelling 
units, including if the building permit is for less than 4 dwelling units. 

 
2.8 Amend Schedule A1 and A2 Classification from “Single Family Residential per lot” to read 

“Single Family Zoned and Duplex zoned per lot” and  “Multi Family Residential in the C3 Zone 
per unit” to read  “Multi Family Residential in the C5 Zone per unit”. 

 
2.9 Amend Schedule B Classification from “Single Family Residential per lot” to read “Single Family 

Zoned and Duplex zoned per lot”. 
 

   
 
READ A FIRST time this 20 day of December, 2016 

READ A SECOND time this 20 day of December, 2016 

READ A THIRD time this 20 day of December, 2016 

RESCIND THIRD and READ THIRD as 
AMENDED 

 day of  , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Inspector of Municipalities on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
 
 

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 101 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:    5605.20 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer  
From: Len Robson, Public Works Manager  
Subject: Provincial License of Occupation 
 Re:  Howard Lake Dam Access 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the Mayor and the Corporate Officer to enter into a License of Occupation, 
Attachment “A” with the Province of British Columbia for the purposes of constructing an access road to 
Howard Lake Dam.  

Strategic priority objective 

N/A 

Background 
 
The Howard Lake Reservoir, shown on the Attachment “B” – Location Map, is located on a tributary of 
Wilkinson Creek, which flows east into the West Kettle River near Carmi. The dam enables water storage and 
diversion of the entire runoff into Penticton Creek, a tributary of Okanagan Lake. The elevation of the 
reservoir is 1910 meters and only accessible by helicopter, ATV in summer, or snowmobile in winter. 
 
The available history of the dam and reservoir is limited, but it appears from the water licenses, that the 
control dam and spillway, ditch, and a low cutoff dam were constructed in 1933.  The dams and ditch divert 
water from the Howard Lake watershed into Penticton Creek.  The City abandoned the water licenses in 
1997, but the dams were not decommissioned and the reservoir and diversion ditch remained.  City crews 
cleared the brush and large debris from the dams in 2012, removed the gate from the control dam and 
constructed a log boom across the entrance to the control dam.  This reduced the live storage but runoff 
from the watershed continues to go to Penticton Creek although the City no longer held a water license 
authorizing the diversion. 
 
On August 21, 2012, the Assistant Regional Manager of the Water Stewardship Division considered the 
reservoir to be a potential threat to downstream landowners and the environment, and ordered the City to 
remove the dam and decommission the reservoir. 
 

- 102 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 4 

Since 2012 the City has applied, and was successful in securing the water licenses for storage and diversion 
of water into the Penticton Creek water shed and is in process of decommissioning the dam to lower the 
consequence rating and the corresponding level of maintenance.  
 
The City is required to secure a “Licence of Occupation” on Crown Land for the purposes of constructing 
approximately 800 meters of road to access the dam for decommissioning and required inspections.   
 
Financial implication 

There are no fees applied to the Licence of Occupation however, from time to time there may be a 
requirement for the City to provide maintenance to the section of road.  The maintenance is expected to be 
minimal and can be addressed through the annual operating budget.  

The dam decommissioning and all related work is financed through the existing carry forward capital 
budget.   

Analysis 

In order to perform the maintenance and inspections required on Howard Lake Dam, an 800 meter access 
road must be developed.   This access road will enable equipment to be brought to the site to complete the 
lowering and decommissioning of the structure as well as providing safe vehicle access for the purposes of 
conducting the required monthly inspections.  

Failure to secure the Licence of Occupation will result in extra-ordinary costs to get equipment to the site for 
the decommissioning and ongoing increased costs and risks for employees accessing the structure to 
complete inspections.  

Alternate recommendations 

N/A 

Attachments 

Attachment “A” – License of Occupation 
Attachment “B” – Location Map  
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Len Robson, AScT 
Public Works Manager 

Approvals 

General Manager 
of Infrastructure 

CAO 

 

 
PW 

 

- 103 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 4 

Attachment “A” – License of Occupation 

License of Occupation for Road to Howard Lake Dam.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 104 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 4 

Attachment “B” - Location Map  

 

 

- 105 -



Attachment A- 106 -

collisa
Typewritten Text



Attachment A- 107 -



Attachment A- 108 -



Attachment A- 109 -



Attachment A- 110 -



Attachment A- 111 -



Attachment A- 112 -



Attachment A- 113 -



Attachment A- 114 -



Attachment A- 115 -



Attachment A- 116 -



Attachment A- 117 -



Attachment A- 118 -



Attachment A- 119 -



Attachment A- 120 -



Attachment A- 121 -



Attachment A- 122 -



Attachment A- 123 -



Attachment A- 124 -



Attachment A- 125 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:     
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Larry Watkinson, Fire Chief 
Subject: Upper Carmi Fire Protection  

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council support adding Upper Carmi area, up to the 11.5km mark from Fire Station 202, into the RDOS Fire 
Protection Agreement with conditions outlined in this report. 

Background 

The Fire Chief presented the concept of expanding the Fire Service Agreement in closed council meeting 
November 21, 2016 with the following resolution: 

IC230/2016               It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council direct staff to draft a proposal for the Regional District Okanagan 
Similkameen (RDOS) that will add Upper Carmi area (up to the 8km mark from Fire 
Station 202) into the Fire Protection Agreement which will satisfy the requirements 
of the Fire Underwriters Survey (FUS) for semi protected. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

March 21, 2017 Council received a report from the Fire Chief outlining the above resolution of expanding the 
Fire Service Agreement in open council meeting November 21, 2016 with the following resolution:  

189/2017                         It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council support adding Upper Carmi area, up to the 8 km mark from Fire 
Station 202, into the RDOS Fire Protection Agreement. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

April 28, 2017, I received a formal request form Bill Newell CAO of the RDOS (Attachment A) requesting that 
the entire Upper Carmi area be included in the RDOS Fire Protection Agreement and to add Upper Carmi 
area up to the 11.5 Km mark from Fire Station 202. 

Financial implication 

- 126 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

RDOS payment for services would be applied exactly as outlined in the RDOS Fire Protection Agreement and 
based on the total assessed value before exemptions.  More properties would be applied to the tax roll 
calculation if extended up to 11.5km mark.  $25.9 million is the assessed value that would be protected 
under this extension up Carmi and based on 2016 actual expenses we would increase our revenues by 
approximately $44,000. 

Analysis 

Response times and operational fire suppression capacity will be adversely affected by the long hill and no 
water supply.  As the Fire Chief, I would be willing to accept the extended response area with conditions at 
the expense of the RDOS: 

1.  That a fire access road be connected to the end of Carmi Road and Beaverdell Road.  
2. A Fire Dept. water reservoir is installed at a location determined by the Penticton Fire Chief.   

In Summary 

The residents of the Upper Carmi area have, for many years, experienced wildfires and structure fires with no 
response to the area.  It is not uncommon for a fire department to have areas that extend far beyond the 
recognized FUS 8km mark, particularly in very rural areas like the RDOS Upper Carmi.  It is also not 
uncommon for residents to want a fire protection service, even with very limited scope, due to water 
supplies and long response times.  Residents knowingly reside in these areas, but can feel vulnerable to fire, 
medical emergencies and rescue operations.   

Alternate recommendations 

Not to extend the fire protection boundaries to the end of Carmi Road. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Bill Newall Request. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Larry Watkinson. 
Fire Chief 
 

Approvals 
Director 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

 PW 

 

 

 

 

- 127 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Attachment A 

 

- 128 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017        File No:    RMS4300 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Anthony Haddad, Director of Development Services 
 
Subject: Mobile Retail Vending 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council support an amendment to the one-year pilot program for Mobile Retail Vending endorsed on 
March 21st 2017, to include: 

• A location for one Mobile Retail Vending truck at a time along the north-west corner of Power Street 
and Lakeshore Drive (Attachment A) 

AND/OR 

• Two locations for Mobile Retail Vending trucks in the Gyro Hub location (Attachment A) 

Strategic priority objective 

Mobile vending supports the vision of a vibrant waterfront City and downtown core. 
 
Background 

Council, at its meeting on March 21st passed the following resolution with regards to Mobile Retail Vending: 

191/2017 It was MOVED and SECONDED  
 
THAT Council support the creation of a one-year pilot program for Mobile Retail Vending as part of the 
Mobile Food Vending License Program for 2017 that allows for:  
 

• A maximum of two mobile retail vendors to be in operation at any one time in any of the locations 
approved for Mobile Food Vending, except the ‘Gyro hub’ or ‘Winnipeg St & Lakeshore’ locations.  
• All applicable fees associated with Mobile Food Vending Licenses and business Licences be paid 
for 2017;  

 
AND THAT Council direct staff deny approval for any mobile retail vending operations within vacant 
commercial sites in the Downtown ‘Core’ for 2017, as identified in Attachment C;  
 

- 129 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

AND FURTHER THAT staff report back to Council in fall 2017 with a summary of issues and 
recommendations.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

Direction from Council was provided for further consultation to occur with the Downton Penticton 
Association (DPA) to look at the potential for mobile retail vendors to be located downtown after hours – to 
reduce potential conflicts with existing businesses. 

Update 

Since the Council meeting on March 21st 2017, the two mobile retail vendors assessed the potential for the 
sites that were identified to be part of the pilot program and have advised that those locations (Sicamous 
and Skaha Park locations) were not appropriate for their use – given the locations, conflicts with the food 
vendors and lack of walk-by traffic – in particular with regards to the Skaha Lake locations.   

Staff have also consulted with the DPA with regards to Council’s request and the following summary was 
provided: 

• Retail trucks are welcomed into the DPA Community Market every Saturday from May 6 to October 
7th 2017  

• The two retail trucks that are seeking to sell in the DPA boundaries sell similar inventory, (and in one 
case the exact merchandise from the same supplier of summer clothing) to what is sold in 
downtown merchant stores  

• The property owners, who also run the retail shop in their building, pay property tax, DPA annual 
levy, hire local residents full and part time, and pay their share of the Revitalization cost when 
needed.  

• Parking the trucks will take up 1-3 parking spots on downtown streets which is taking 
customer/client parking for the businesses who are retail and non-retail  

• DPA cannot see how retail trucks add to the economic development of the downtown when they 
take parking away, don’t hire locals, do not pay property taxes which funds city hall’s infrastructure 
improvements including the roads they want to operate from, and take away from sales in bricks 
and mortar stores  

• Retail is already competing with on-line shopping and the population of shoppers in Penticton is not 
large enough to support an additional competition from retail trucks  

• These retail truck operators are requesting to set up in the DPA area after closing time, which for 
them has been identified as 6pm, however, we have stores that have the option to stay open later 
(many do over the summer)  

• DPA is concerned about the amount of hours spent on this issue with city staff time and DPA board 
time for 2 operators that will not work within the permit parameters already in place in Penticton, 
and keep requesting changes from the city to work for them at the expense of established 
businesses. If the trucks were to be given approval to set up and sell downtown, the City of 
Penticton will not see any financial benefits as paying property taxes, Revit cost sharing and jobs for 
locals will not happen. These vendors are not DPA members like all downtown property owners.  

 
A copy of the DPA’s detailed response is provided in Attachment B. 
 
Pilot Program – Additional Location Request 
 

- 130 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

The proposed requested change to the Pilot Program would allow for two spaces along Power Street, 
adjacent to Lakeshore Drive and the use of the Gyro Hub location, outside of the times when the space is 
used for special events and festivals.  The locations are identified in Attachment A. 
 
The proposed Power Street locations would eliminate two or three parking spaces that exist on the north-
west corner of Power Street.  The mobile retail vendors would be required to keep all of their operations 
within the confines of their trucks to limit their impact on Power Street, including the access doors – 
ensuring that they do not open into the street. 
 
The option of allowing the retail vendors in the Gyro Hub location would allow the retail trucks to be located 
on the ‘through-street’ that has been constructed for exactly this purpose, following a comprehensive 
design process with the community in 2013-14.  The intention of the ‘through-street’ was not only to 
provide an alternative vehicle access during events, but to provide a location for vendors to locate, as 
opposed to being located within the park and impacting the trees and park space.  It is noted that the Gyro 
Park through road is not available for mobile vending trucks when the market or other organized special 
events occur. 
 
Analysis 
 
The DPA are clearly concerned with allowing mobile retail vendors anywhere in the downtown core, as 
outlined in their letter (Attachment B).  The downtown location that would have the most limited impact is 
the Gyro Hub location (although this location does potentially compete with Freeride Board Shop and their 
clothing sales) and should Council support this location, the mobile retail vendors would locate there at 
times that do not conflict with other organized special events, including the Farmers Market, and in 
accordance with the mobile Food Vending Program requirements.  
 
With regards to the Power Street location, potential safety concerns exit by allowing the vendor trucks to be 
in place close to the Lakawanna Playground, on the opposite side of the road to the proposed location.  
Pedestrians would be required to follow the appropriate road crossing markings when moving across Power 
Street and the retail vendors would be required to contain sales in their trucks and provide access via the 
park space on the west side of the location where the retail truck is parked.   
 
If Council are to support this location, it is recommended that only one mobile retail vending truck be 
parked in this location at any one time and the two vendors would be required to rotate through his 
location.  To allow for the retail vending trucks to be located along the proposed portion of Power Street, 
approximately two parking spaces would be removed in an area that sees increased use during the peak 
summer periods. 
 
The proposed pilot program amendments, if supported by Council would only be in place for the 2017 year, 
with a report being brought back to Council in the Fall of 2017 outlining the successes and failures of the 
program with recommendations on how to proceed on a more permanent basis. 
 
Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council direct staff in an alternative manner. 

- 131 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

Council could set certain hours of operations for the retail trucks in the two locations proposed, outside 
the main operating hours of stores in the downtown core, or even limit the use of these locations to 
certain days – Sundays for example, when some retail establishments are closed, to reduce potential 
conflicts that have been identified by the DPA. 

 
Should Council wish to see alternative locations in the downtown for the mobile retail vendors, then 
they should advise staff accordingly so that they can be permitted through the proposed pilot program. 

 
2. THAT Council not support the proposed locations for mobile retail vending trucks. 

 
As outlined in the staff report, the two locations proposed come with their issues and should Council not 
deem these two locations appropriate, they should deny the request for mobile retail vending at this 
time. 

 
Attachments 

Attachment A – Additional Retail Truck Vending Locations Requested 

Attachment B – Downtown Penticton Association Letter 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Anthony Haddad 
Director of Development Services      
 

Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH PW 

 

- 132 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

Attachment A – Additional Retail Truck Vending Locations Requested 

Power Street

 

 

 

 

- 133 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Gyro Park Locations 

 

 

  

- 134 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

Attachment B – Downtown Penticton Association Letter 

 

- 135 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-21 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone Lot 1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale 
Lytton) District Plan 1175, located at 201 Maple Street and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown 
on Plan B5606, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen (Formerly Yale Lytton) Division Yale District, 
Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue West, from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM3 
(Medium Density Multiple Housing).  

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of March, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this 4 day of April, 2017 

READ A THIRD time this 4 day of April, 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

7 day of April, 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 24 day of March, 2017 and the 29 day of March, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 136 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-21

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

350-329

350-329

350

329-36

339-360

     

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R. 
P.   

3 
 
 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R    P
      

     
    

 

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

PPPPP

R.
 

R.
 

R
 

R.
 

R.
 

R.P
. 679

1

R.P
. 679

1
R.P

. 679
1

R.P
. 679

1
R.P

. 679
1

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

R.P.
  36

62

               

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.
  35

20

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

B-56
06

B-56
06

B-56
06

B-56
06

B-56
06

R.P.
 117

5
R.P.

 117
5

R.P.
 117

5
R.P.

 117
5

R.P.
 117

5 R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

  1 
  0 

   

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

R. P
.   

     
    

 117
5

 117
5

 117
5

 117
5

 117
5

8595
6

8595
6

8595
6

8595
6

8595
6KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

5385
2

5385
2

5385
2

5385
2

5385
2

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

5462
5

5462
5

5462
5

5462
5

5462
5

35203520352035203520

EPPEPPEPPEPPEPP

5039
3

5039
3

5039
3

5039
3

5039
3

     
     

     

Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15

Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

     

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

          

     

     
     

     

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15

L  L  L  L  L  

Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14Lot 14

Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30

Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13Lot 13

     

          
     

     

     

L  L  L  L  L  
Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9

     

Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 10Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11Lot 11

     

Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12Lot 12

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0Lot 0

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2
Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25Lot 25

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

     

     
     

t 24t 24t 24t 24t 24

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

L t PT 4L t PT 4L t PT 4L t PT 4L t PT 4

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

5555
560
560
560
560
560568

568
568
568
568

573
573
573
573
573

561
561
561
561
561

27
3

27
3

27
327
3

27
3

23
3

23
3

23
323
3

23
3

21
7

21
7

21
721
7

21
7

21
1

21
1

21
121
1

21
1

20
7

20
7

20
720
7

20
7

26
8

26
8

26
826
8

26
8

25
0

25
0

25
025
0

25
0

22
6

22
6

22
622
6

22
6

20
1

20
1

20
120
1

20
1634

634
634
634
634

680
680
680
680
680

698
698
698
698
698

710
710
710
710
710

702
702
702
702
702

23
5

23
5

23
523
5

23
5

24
9

24
9

24
924
9

24
9

707
707
707
707
707

17
7

17
7

17
717
7

17
7

19
6

19
6

19
619
6

19
6

19
0

19
0

19
019
0

19
0

603
603
603
603
603

576
576
576
576
576

584
584
584
584
584598

598
598
598
598

585
585
585
585
585597

597
597
597
597

594
594
594
594
594

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 100-200

RENE A  
RENE A  
RENE A  
RENE A  
RENE A  

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

 
 100-200

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

B
ASSETT ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

M
A

PLE ST 200-300

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

R AVE W 700-800

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 600-700

WESTMINSTER AVE W 5

WESTMINSTER AVE W 50

WESTMINSTER AVE W 50

WESTMINSTER AVE W 5

WESTMINSTER AVE W 5

Rezone 634 Westminster Ave W & 201 Maple Street
From R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM3 (Medium Density Multiple Housing)

- 137 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 
 

Development Variance Permit 
 

Permit Number: DVP PL2016-7826 
 
 
 
Conditions of Permit  

 
1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as 

specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit. 
 

2. This permit applies to:  
 

Legal:  Lot 1, Block 125, District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale(Formerly 
Yale Lytton) District Plan 1175, and That Part of Lot 1, Block 125 shown on Plan B5606, 
District Lot 2, Group 7, Similkameen (FORMERLY YALE LYTTON) Division Yale District, 
Plan 1175 located at 634 Westminster Avenue WestLot 13, Block 1, District 202, Group 
7, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 269 
Civic: 201 Maple Street and 634 Wesminster Avenue 
PID: 011-792-698  & 001-729-527  

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government 
Act, to vary:   

• Section 7.6. To reduce the parking requirement for an apartment from 16 
stalls to 12 stalls  

• Section 10.9.2.8 To reduce the rear yard setback from 6m to 4.5m 

General Conditions  
 

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this 
permit shall be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached 
as Schedule A.  

 
5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit 

does not commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the 
date of this permit, this permit shall lapse. 

 
6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the 

holder of this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection 
Department.  

 
7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The 

holder of this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or 
provincial approvals prior to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

 
8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the 

- 138 -



Page 2 of 2 

building permit stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements 
and electrical servicing. There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs 
payable at a later date. For more information on servicing and infrastructure 
requirements please contact the Development Engineering Department at (250) 490-
2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, please contact the Electric Utility 
at (250) 490-2535.    

 
 
Authorized by City Council, the  
 
 
 
Issued this _____ day of ___________, 2017 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Dana Schmidt, 
Corporate Officer  

- 139 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 
 

Development Permit 
 

Permit Number: DP PL2017-7825 
 
 
Conditions of Permit  

 
1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as 

specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit. 
 

2. This permit applies to:  
 
Legal:  Lot 1, Block 125, DL2, Group7, SDYD(FORMERLY YALE LYTTON) Plan EPP71894  
Civic: 634 Westminster Avenue W 
PID: 030-127-696 
 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 489 of the Local Government Act, to 
permit the construction of an 3 storey building as shown in the plans attached in Schedule A. 
 

General Conditions  
 

4. In accordance with Section 501(2) of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this permit 
shall be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached as Schedule A. 
 

5. In accordance with Section 502 of the Local Government Act a deposit or irrevocable letter of 
credit, in the amount of $13,250 must be deposited prior to, or in conjunction with, an application 
for a building permit for the development authorized by this permit. The City may apply all or 
part of the above-noted security in accordance with Section 502(2.1) of the Local Government 
Act, to undertake works or other activities required to:  
 

a. correct an unsafe condition that has resulted from a contravention of this permit,  
b. satisfy the landscaping requirements of this permit as shown in Schedule A or 

otherwise required by this permit, or 
c. repair damage to the natural environment that has resulted from a contravention of 

this permit.  
 

6. The holder of this permit shall be eligible for a refund of the security described under Condition 5 
only if:  
 

a. the permit has lapsed as described under Condition 8, or  
b. a completion certificate has been issued by the Building Inspection Department and 

the Director of Development Services is satisfied that the conditions of this permit 
have been met.    
 

7. Upon completion of the development authorized by this permit, an application for release of 
securities, provided in Schedule B, must be submitted to the Planning Department. Staff may 
carry out inspections of the development to ensure the conditions of this permit have been met. 

- 140 -



DP PL2017-7825   Page 2 of 2 

Inspection fees may be withheld from the security as follows: 
 
 

1st Inspection  No fee  
2nd Inspection $50  
3rd Inspection  $100 
4th Inspection or additional inspections   $200 

 
8.  In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit does not 

commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the date of this permit, 
this permit shall lapse. 

 
9. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the holder of this 

permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection Department.  
 

10. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The holder of 
this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or provincial approvals prior 
to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  
 

11. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the building 
permit stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements and electrical 
servicing. There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs payable at a later date. For 
more information on servicing and infrastructure requirements please contact the Development 
Engineering Department at (250) 490-2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, 
please contact the Electric Utility at (250) 490-2535.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
Authorized by City Council, the 23 day of May, 2017 
 
 
 
Issued this _____ day of ___________, 2017 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Dana Schmidt, 
Corporate Officer  

 
 

 

- 141 -



S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

P
E

N
T

I
C

T
O

N
,
 
B

C

W
E

S
T

M
I
N

S
T

E
R

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
 
&

 
M

A
P

L
E

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

W
 
1

2
 
U

N
I
T

 
R

E
N

T
A

L
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G

A
1
.
0

3/
2/

20
17

 1
:2

4:
03

 P
M

SCHEDULE
"A

" 

DP P
L2

01
7-7

82
5

- 142 -



L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

P
E

N
T

I
C

T
O

N
,
 
B

C

W
E

S
T

M
I
N

S
T

E
R

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
 
&

 
M

A
P

L
E

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

W
 
1

2
 
U

N
I
T

 
R

E
N

T
A

L
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G

A
1
.
1

3/
2/

20
17

 1
:2

4:
06

 P
M

SCHEDULE
"A

" 

DP P
L2

01
7-7

82
5

- 143 -



E
L

E
V

A
T

I
O

N
S

P
E

N
T

I
C

T
O

N
,
 
B

C

W
E

S
T

M
I
N

S
T

E
R

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
 
&

 
M

A
P

L
E

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

W
 
1

2
 
U

N
I
T

 
R

E
N

T
A

L
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G

A
3

.
0

12
/2

1/
20

16
 2

:3
3:

15
 P

M

SCHEDULE
"A

" 

DP P
L2

01
7-7

82
5

- 144 -



3
D

 
M

O
D

E
L

 
V

I
E

W
S

P
E

N
T

I
C

T
O

N
,
 
B

C

W
E

S
T

M
I
N

S
T

E
R

 
A

V
E

N
U

E
 
&

 
M

A
P

L
E

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

W
 
1

2
 
U

N
I
T

 
R

E
N

T
A

L
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 
B

U
I
L
D

I
N

G

A
5

.
0

12
/2

1/
20

16
 2

:3
3:

22
 P

M

SCHEDULE
"A

" 

DP P
L2

01
7-7

82
5

- 145 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-27 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone portion of Amended Lot A (DD 244437F), DL 115, Similkameen Division Yale, District 
Plan3494 Except PLANS 20051 and 26786 located at 180 Industrial Avenue W, from P1 (Public 
Assembly) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing). 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 18 day of April, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 2 day of May, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this 2 day of May, 2017 

READ A THIRD time this 2 day of May, 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

3 day of May, 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 21 day of April, 2017 and the 26 day of April, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 146 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-27

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

To rezone a portion of 180 Industrial 
Avenue W From P1 (Public Assembly)
To RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing)

- 147 -



 
 

City of Penticton 
171 Main St.   |  Penticton B.C.  |  V2A 5A9 

www.penticton.ca   |  ask@penticton.ca 
 
 

Development Variance Permit 
 

Permit Number: DVP PL2017-7878 
 
 
Conditions of Permit  

 
1. This permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the City, except as 

specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit. 
 
2. This permit applies to:  
 

Legal: AMENDED LOT A (DD 244437F) DISTRICT LOT 115, SIMILKAMEEN DIVISION 
YALE, DISTRICT PLAN 3494 EXCEPT PLANS 20051 AND 26786 

 Civic: 180 Industrial Avenue 
PID: 010-843-124 
 

3. This permit has been issued in accordance with Section 498 of the Local Government 
Act, to vary the following section of Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 as shown in the plan 
attached in Schedule “A”: 
 
• Section 7.6 Parking Requirements Table 7.5 to reduce the number of 

required parking stalls from 16 to 11 stalls 

General Conditions  
 

4. In accordance with Section 501 of the Local Government Act, the lands subject to this 
permit shall be developed in general accordance with this permit and the plans attached 
as Schedule A.  

 
5. In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act, if the holder of this permit 

does not commence the development authorized by this permit within 2 years of the 
date of this permit, this permit shall lapse. 

 
6. This permit is not a building permit.  In order to proceed with this development, the 

holder of this permit must hold a valid building permit issued by the Building Inspection 
Department.  

7. This permit does not constitute any other municipal, provincial or federal approval. The 
holder of this permit is responsible to obtain any additional municipal, federal, or 
provincial approvals prior to commencing the development authorized by this permit.  

 
8. This permit does not include off-site infrastructure costs that may be required at the 

building permit stage, such as Development Cost Charges (DCC’s), road improvements 
and electrical servicing. There may be substantial infrastructure and servicing costs 
payable at a later date. For more information on servicing and infrastructure 

- 148 -



Page 2 of 2 

requirements please contact the Development Engineering Department at (250) 490-
2501. For more information on electrical servicing costs, please contact the Electric Utility 
at (250) 490-2535.    

 
 
Authorized by City Council, the       day of    , 2017 
 
 
 
Issued this _____ day of ___________, 2017 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Dana Schmidt, 
Corporate Officer  

- 149 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-32 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone Lot 1, District Lots 202 and 249 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 3562 Except Plan 
KAP68121, located at 747 Government Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low 
Density Multiple Housing). 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 2 day of May, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 23 day of May, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 12 day of May, 2017 and the 17 day of May, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 150 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-32

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

467-410
406-461

461-410

     

RRRRR

     

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.
1133

1
1133

1
1133

1
1133

1
1133

1
R.P.

  26
501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
  26

501

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R.P.
    

1245
0

R P.R P.R P.R.P.R P.

KAP 
8508

0
KAP 

8508
0

KAP 
8508

0
KAP 

8508
0

KAP 
8508

0

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

35623562356235623562
REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

REMREMREMREMREM

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

     

     

     

     

     
Lot 36Lot 36Lot 36Lot 36Lot 36

     

Lot 37Lot 37Lot 37Lot 37Lot 37

          

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

          

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lo  Lo  Lo  Lo  Lo  

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

     

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

     

L t 4L t 4L t 4L t 4L t 4

     
Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A
76

4
76

4
76

4
76

4
76

4

75
6

75
6

75
6

75
6

75
6

74
8

74
8

74
8

74
8

74
8

74
0

74
0

74
0

74
0

74
0

585
585
585
585
585

560
560
560
560
560

572
572
572
572
572

102
102
102
102
102

76
3

76
3

76
3

76
3

76
3

75
9

75
9

75
9

75
9

75
9

75
5

75
5

75
5

75
5

75
5

74
7

74
7

74
7

74
7

74
7

73
9

73
9

73
9

73
9

73
9

75
2

75
2

75
2

75
2

75
2

592
592
592
592
592

5959595959

76
0

76
0

76
0

76
0

76
0

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

GAHAN AVE 400-600

B
IR

D ST 700-800

B
IR

D ST 700-800

B
IR

D ST 700-800

B
IR

D ST 700-800

B
IR

D ST 700-800

          

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

G
O

VERN
M

EN
T ST 700-800

Rezone 747 Government Street
From R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing)

- 151 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-33  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-33 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-33”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Add under 11.5 C5 – Urban Centre Commercial: 
 

11.5.4 SITE SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 
 
.6 On Lot 1, District Lot 4, Group 7, Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale-Lytton) District, 
Plan EPP57755, located at 285 Nanaimo Ave W, residential uses shall be permitted on the first 
floor. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 2 day of May, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 23 day of May, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 12 day of May, 2017 and the 17 day of May, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 152 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-33

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

360

360-359

360-369

4545454545
P.P.P.P.P.

R.P.
 430

44

R.P.
 430

44

R.P.
 430

44

R.P.
 430

44

R.P.
 430

44

R.P.
 385

3
R.P.

 385
3

R.P.
 385

3
R.P.

 385
3

R.P.
 385

3

P.P.P.P.P.

4747474747

P.  
  8 

 1  
0

P.  
  8 

 1  
0

P.  
  8 

 1  
0

P.  
  8 

 1  
0

P.  
  8 

 1  
0

R.P.
 366

9
R.P.

 366
9

R.P.
 366

9
R.P.

 366
9

R.P.
 366

9

P.P.P.P.P.

7777777777

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

R.P
. 805

KAP 
6598

9
KAP 

6598
9

KAP 
6598

9
KAP 

6598
9

KAP 
6598

9

R.P
.  87

7

R.P
.  87

7
R.P

.  87
7

R.P
.  87

7
R.P

.  87
7

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

5340
4

5340
4

5340
4

5340
4

5340
4

     

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP

6187
8

6187
8

6187
8

6187
8

6187
8

EPP 
5775

5
EPP 

5775
5

EPP 
5775

5
EPP 

5775
5

EPP 
5775

5

     

Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22

     

Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot ALot 20Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20Lot 20

Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19

Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

     

 A  A A A

     

     

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 29Lot 29Lot 29Lot 29Lot 29Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30Lot 30

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 31Lot 31Lot 31Lot 31Lot 31

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

     

Lot 41Lot 41Lot 41Lot 41Lot 41

     

Lot 40Lot 40Lot 40Lot 40Lot 40

     

Lot 39Lot 39Lot 39Lot 39Lot 39Lot 38Lot 38Lot 38Lot 38Lot 38 37 37 37 37 37

     

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5

Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6
Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

     

     

     

     

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

302
302
302
302
302316

316
316
316
316328

328
328
328
328350

350
350
350
350362

362
362
362
362374

374
374
374
374

398
398
398
398
398

317
317
317
317
317329

329
329
329
329351

351
351
351
351363

363
363
363
363375

375
375
375
375385

385
385
385
385399

399
399
399
399

29
1

29
1

29
129
1

29
1

28
3

28
3

28
328
3

28
3

27
5

27
5

27
527
5

27
5

26
9

26
9

26
926
9

26
9

25
7

25
7

25
725
7

25
7

30
2

30
2

30
230
2

30
2

31
7

31
7

31
731
7

31
7

250
250
250
250
250

280
280
280
280
280

26
0

26
0

26
026
0

26
0

251
251
251
251
251

225
225
225
225
225

29
9

29
9

29
929
9

29
9

28
3

28
3

28
328
3

28
3

27
7

27
7

27
727
7

27
7

2626262626

285
285
285
285
285

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

NANAIMO AVE W 300-400

NANAIMO AVE W 300-400

NANAIMO AVE W 300-400

NANAIMO AVE W 300-400

NANAIMO AVE W 300-400

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

NANAIMO AVE W 200-300

NANAIMO AVE W 200-300

NANAIMO AVE W 200-300

NANAIMO AVE W 200-300

NANAIMO AVE W 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 300-400

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 300-400

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 300-400

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 300-400

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 300-400

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300

B
RU

N
SW

IC
K

 ST 200-300 NAN
   

NAN
   

NAN
   

NAN
   

NAN
   

W
INN

IPEG
 ST 200-300

W
INN

IPEG
 ST 200-300

W
INN

IPEG
 ST 200-300

W
INN

IPEG
 ST 200-300

W
INN

IPEG
 ST 200-300

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Site Specific Zoning Amendment
To permit ground floor residential units at 285 Nanaimo Ave W (C5 Zone)

- 153 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-34  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-34 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-34”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Add under 11.5 C5 – Urban Centre Commercial: 
 

11.5.4 SITE SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 
 
.7 In the case of Lot 5, Block 19, District Lot 202, Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 269, 
located at 532/536 Main Street, dwelling units on the first storey behind commercial spaces 
shall be permitted. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 2 day of May, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 23 day of May, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 12 day of May, 2017 and the 17 day of May, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 154 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-34

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

389-400

399-390

409-390

380-399

380-389

     

 
 

  
     

   
 
  

 
 

  
     

   
 
  

 
 

  
     

   
 
  

 
 

  
     

   
 
  

 
 

  
     

   
 
  

R. 
 

  
     

   
 
  

R. 
 

  
     

   
 
  

R. 
 

  
     

   
 
  

R. 
 

  
     

   
 
  

R. 
 

  
     

   
 
  

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  9

     

2485
6

2485
6

2485
6

2485
6

2485
6

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

R.P
.   2

  6   
9

R.P
.   2

  6   
9

R.P
.   2

  6   
9

R.P
.   2

  6   
9

R.P
.   2

  6   
9

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  

R. 
 P.  

     2
   6 

  

R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.R.P.

269269269269269

KAPKAPKAPKAPKAP
6316

9
6316

9
6316

9
6316

9
6316

9

REMREMREMREMREM

Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24
Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23
Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22
Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21
Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6

Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19
Lo  Lo  Lo  Lo  Lo  

Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18
L  L  L  L  L  

Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17

     
Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16

Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15Lot 15
     

     
     

     

Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19Lot 19

Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18Lot 18

Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17Lot 17

Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16Lot 16

Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24Lot 24

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23Lot 23

Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2Lot 2

Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22Lot 22

Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3Lot 3

Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4Lot 4

Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21Lot 21 Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5

Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6

Lot BLot BLot BLot BLot B Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7

Lot ALot ALot ALot ALot A

Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8Lot 8

Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9Lot 9

     

     

Lot PCL ALot PCL ALot PCL ALot PCL ALot PCL A

Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5Lot 5

Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7Lot 7

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1Lot 1

Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6Lot 6

     

48
5

48
5

48
548
5

48
5

48
9

48
9

48
948
9

48
9

49
5

49
5

49
549
5

49
5

49
6

49
6

49
649
6

49
6

50
2

50
2

50
250
2

50
2

53
0

53
0

53
053
0

53
0

53
8

53
8

53
853
8

53
8

54
6

54
6

54
654
6

54
6

50
1

50
1

50
150
1

50
1

50
9

50
9

50
950
9

50
9

51
7

51
7

51
751
7

51
7

52
5

52
5

52
552
5

52
5

53
3

53
3

53
353
3

53
3

53
5

53
5

53
553
5

53
5

54
1

54
1

54
154
1

54
1

55
7

55
7

55
755
7

55
7

50
3

50
3

50
350
3

50
3

51
1

51
1

51
151
1

51
1

51
9

51
9

51
951
9

51
9

52
7

52
7

52
752
7

52
7

53
5

53
5

53
553
5

53
5

54
3

54
3

54
354
3

54
3

55
1

55
1

55
155
1

55
1

55
9

55
9

55
955
9

55
9

50
4

50
4

50
450
4

50
4

50
6

50
6

50
650
6

50
6

50
8

50
8

50
850
8

50
8

51
0

51
0

51
051
0

51
0

52
0

52
0

52
052
0

52
0

52
8

52
8

52
852
8

52
8

53
2

53
2

53
253
2

53
2

53
6

53
6

53
653
6

53
6

53
8

53
8

53
853
8

53
8

54
0

54
0

54
054
0

54
0

54
4

54
4

54
454
4

54
4

54
8

54
8

54
854
8

54
8

55
2

55
2

55
255
2

55
2

56
4

56
4

56
456
4

56
4

56
8

56
8

56
856
8

56
8 57

5
57

5
57

557
5

57
5

56
7

56
7

56
756
7

56
7

50
2

50
2

50
250
2

50
2

51
0

51
0

51
051
0

51
0

51
8

51
8

51
851
8

51
8

52
6

52
6

52
652
6

52
6

53
4

53
4

53
453
4

53
4

54
2

54
2

54
254
2

54
2

5757575757

55
8

55
8

55
855
8

55
8

55
0

55
0

55
055
0

55
0

56
0

56
0

56
056
0

56
0

56
4

56
4

56
456
4

56
4

  00-200
  00-200
  00-200
  00-200
  00-200

PADMORE AVE E 0-100

PADMORE AVE E 0-100

PADMORE AVE E 0-100

PADMORE AVE E 0-100

PADMORE AVE E 0-100

PADMORE AVE W 0-100

PADMORE AVE W 0-100

PADMORE AVE W 0-100

PADMORE AVE W 0-100

PADMORE AVE W 0-100

   
   
   
   
   

ELLIS ST 500-600

ELLIS ST 500-600

ELLIS ST 500-600

ELLIS ST 500-600

ELLIS ST 500-600

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
A

RTIN
 ST 500-600

M
A

RTIN
 ST 500-600

M
A

RTIN
 ST 500-600

M
A

RTIN
 ST 500-600

M
A

RTIN
 ST 500-600

M
A

IN
 ST 400-500

M
A

IN
 ST 400-500

M
A

IN
 ST 400-500

M
A

IN
 ST 400-500

M
A

IN
 ST 400-500

M
A

IN
 ST 500-600

M
A

IN
 ST 500-600

M
A

IN
 ST 500-600

M
A

IN
 ST 500-600

M
A

IN
 ST 500-600

Site Specific Zoning Amendment
To permit dwelling units on the first storey behind commercial spaces at 

532/536 Main Street (C5 Zone)

- 155 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-35  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-35 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-35”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Delete and replace 11.5.3.1 OTHER REGULATIONS with the following: 
 

.1  Dwelling units are restricted to second or higher storeys. 
 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 2 day of May, 2017 

PUBLIC HEARING waived 2 day of May, 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw and waive public hearing was published on the 12 day of May, 2017 and the 17 day of 
May, 2017 in the Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  

 
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 156 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:  Civic 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Ken Kunka, Building and Permitting Manager 
Address: 200 Ellis Street 

Subject: Liquor-Primary Licence Permanent Amendment and Structural Change Application  
 Mile Zero Wine Bar 
 

Staff Recommendation 

1. THAT Council recommends to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) that it supports the 
application from Mile Zero Wine Bar located at 200 Ellis Street for a Permanent change for: 

• hours of service (interior) from 11:00am to 12:00am (midnight) to 11:00am to 2:00am, 
Sunday to Saturday, and 

• an interior occupant load increase from 60 persons to 100 persons; 
 

2. AND THAT Council  supports the structural change application to add an exterior licensed patio with: 
• Maximum occupant load of 40 persons,  
• Hours of service from 11:00am to 10:00pm, with 
• No exterior amplified music. 

Strategic priority objective 

N/A 

Background & Proposal 

The City has received a permanent and structural change application from Christine Cronie, co-owner of Mile 
Zero Wine Bar at 200 Ellis Street (Attachment A), seeking changes to their Liquor Primary Licence to increase 
operating hours: 

• from the current Sunday to Saturday 11:00am to 12:00 am(midnight); to proposed hours of 11:00 am 
to 2:00am, 

• increase the occupant interior occupant load from 60 persons to 100 persons, and 
• Increase the licensed exterior patio to 40 persons occupant load and hours of operation 11:00am to 

11:00pm (Attachment B).  

History 

On May 4th, 2015 Council supported a recommendation to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) 
for an application from Cronies Auto Parts Ltd, located at 200 Ellis Street, for a Liquor-Primary Licence 
Endorsement (30 persons interior) and that staff investigate resident only parking options in this 
neighbourhood (247/2015) The application also reference to an exterior patio area of a maximum of 10 

- 157 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 9 

persons, but it was not installed as part of the business operations. During the initial public consultation 
some residents and businesses owners had concerns over the potential for noise generation from a liquor 
establishment during and after hours. There were also concerns regarding patrons parking in residential 
areas. 

On December 15, 2015 Council supported a recommendation to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch 
(LCLB) that it supports the application from Mile Zero Wine Bar located at 200 Ellis Street for a Permanent 
Amendment (structural change) to increase interior occupant load from 30 to 60 people; and hours of 
service from 11:00am to 11:00pm to 11am to 12:00am (midnight), Sunday to Saturday. During the public 
consultation process concerns were raised by some local residents of increased noise and parking issues. 

To date, there have been no bylaw complaint case files recorded for noise or parking related issues from the 
neighboring residents since the opening in 2015. Staff have monitored the area and have not witnessed any 
issues relating to parking since the opening of Mile Zero. 

Proposal Intent 

The owners wish to make these additional changes to their operations due to the demand from patrons. The 
applicant has provided a community impact statement to outline their request (Attachment C). This change 
also includes an increased area and occupant load for an exterior patio use. The patio has not been in 
operation to date but application for sidewalk/boulevard use has been applied for.  

The current interior occupant load maximum is related to the number of washrooms provided for patrons as 
regulated under the BC Building Code. 

 
Site Context 

The current property is zoned C6 – Mixed Use Commercial and the use meets Zoning regulations.  There are 
no restrictions on the hours of operation under the Zoning Bylaw. The property is located in a mixed 
residential and commercial area (Map – Attachment A). There are four compliant on-site parking spaces and 
no outstanding Building or Fire Code issues in relation to their current operations.  
 
Current uses near the proposed property include: 

• East – mixed residential;  
• North – mixed commercial and residential; (including the Cannery Brewery) 
• South – mixed residential, commercial; and 
• West – mixed commercial, office and residential (downtown core). 

Liquor Control and Licencing Branch (LCLB) Legislation, Policy and Bylaw Review 
 
Any business in the hospitality, entertainment or beverage industry - including bars, pubs, lounges, 
nightclubs, stadiums, theatres, recreation and convention centers - may apply for a Liquor-Primary licence. 
The only exceptions are businesses geared towards youth (which may not be licensed to serve liquor) and 
private clubs (which require a Liquor-Primary Club licence.) 
 
The LCLB application process for a permanent change for a Liquor-Primary licence requires a municipal 
resolution (within 90 days) before the Province will consider the application further. The change request is 
currently under a parallel review with LCLB.  
 
The Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation requests that the City review and provide resolution related to 
the following criteria: 

- 158 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 9 

 
• The location of the establishment, person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment, 
• The impact of noise on nearby residents, 
• The impact on the community if the application is approved (example - public nuisance (RCMP), 

traffic issues, etc.); and 
• Public input for the community in the immediate vicinity of the proposed endorsement service 

area(s) and how input was gathered. 
 

Financial implication 

Mandatory public consultation notification costs will be offset through the City’s Liquor application review 
fees. 

Analysis 

Technical Review 

As part of the Liquor Control and Licencing Branch (LCLB) requirements, the City has conducted an 
assessment of the technical criteria as well as conducting a public consultation review. In consideration of 
criteria, the following information has been provided from the City’s Liquor Licencing Technical Review 
Committee (LLTRC) with regards to this application. 

Location of establishment, person capacity and hours of service 

• Ellis Street is classified as an Urban Collector Commercial route with maximum speeds of 30 km/hr.  
• No off-street parking is required. There are 4 compliant on-site patron/staff parking. 
• There are currently more than 100 street parking spaces along Ellis within two blocks of the 

proposed location with an additional 50 off-street parking spaces located at the Nanaimo parking 
lot.  
However, there is proposed density increase in the downtown core over the next several years which 
will impact the availability of off-street parking lots and increased vehicles in the downtown area. 

• There is a mix of commercial, industrial and single/multi-family residential development within the 
consultation area. There are 0 Liquor Primary, 3 Food Primary Licensed and one Brewery Lounge 
(Cannery) premises within a 2 block (100 meter) radius of the property. 

• The increase in internal person occupant load from 60 to 100 will require additional washroom(s) 
under a Building Permit. 

• The hours of service will be later than other establishments in the area. The Cannery Brewery (North 
of Wine Bar) operates until 11:00pm. 
 
Noise and traffic related issues can be regulated under current City regulations. 

The impact of noise on nearby residents: 

• Concerns were raised by some members of the Committee in relation to the initial request for 
expanded hours to 2:00am and were communicated the applicant. These concerns revolved around 
the applicant’s ability to ensure patrons do not use the exterior patio during late hours and noise 
issues during dispersal at the 2:00am closure. 
 

- 159 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 9 

It is suggested that the hours of operation on the patio be restricted to a 10:00pm closure and the 
operator ensure there is no loitering by patrons on the patio after 10:00pm or after the final 2:00am 
closure. 
 
Any potential impact to the surrounding neighborhood will be governed by the City’s existing 
regulations. 

 

The impact on the community if the application is approved: 

There are two social and recreation facilities in the local area including: 

o FitKidz Gymnastics Club (across the road); 

o The Ooknakane Friendship Centre (one block to the north) 

Staff and the LLTRC do not foresee any significant negative impact on these organizations. The 
establishment provides a service to promoting the local winery industry.  

 

Public Consultation 

As this application is an amendment to an existing licence, public notification was commenced as part of 
staff and the LLTRC review. Input from local residents would allow staff to engage with the applicant to 
address any concerns and provide mitigation measures prior to final recommendation to Council for 
endorsement. A notice of application and request for comment was mailed out to the business owners and 
residents within 100m (Attachment D) of the subject property on April 28th. Public Notice Signage placed 
along Winnipeg Street and two public notices were placed in the local newspapers.  

As a result, there have been letter received at the time of preparation of this report (Attachment D). The 
concerns revolve around increased parking and traffic, noise and light nuisances as well as smoking. 

Citizens are also provided the opportunity to comment on the application the day of the Council meeting 
held May 23, 2017. 

LLTRC Recommendation: 

Based upon the comments received by the Liquor Licensing Technical Review Committee and consultation 
with staff and public, it is recommended that the proposed application be supported with a maximum 
exterior patio use of 10:00pm. 

Council can choose to support the application as presented or modify the request with further restrictions 
such as use or hours. Should Council deny the application then the applicant will be informed of that 
decision and a Council resolution outlining the reason for denial will be forwarded to the LCLB. 

Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council denies support of the Permanent change for hours of service (interior) from 11:00am to 
12:00am (midnight) to 11:00am to 2:00am, Sunday to Saturday; 

2. THAT Council denies support of Permanent change in interior occupant load from 60 persons to 100 
persons; 

- 160 -

http://www.fitkidzcan.com/
http://www.friendshipcentre.ca/


 
Council Report  Page 5 of 9 

3. THAT Council denies support or modifies the structural change application for the exterior licensed 
patio; or 

2. THAT Council refer back to staff for further review. 
 
Attachments 

Attachment A – Site and Zoning Map  
Attachment B – Exterior Patio layout 
Attachment C – Owner impact statement 
Attachment D – Public Consultation Map 
Attachment E – Public Consultation comments 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Ken Kunka AScT, RBO 
Building and Permitting Manager 
LLTRC Chairperson 
 
Approvals 

Director of 
Development Services 

 
CAO 

AH 
 

PW 

 
 

- 161 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 9 

Attachment A 
Site Map 

 

  

C6 - Zoning 

 

Nanaimo Parking 
50 stalls 

 

Multi-family 

Fitz Kids 

 

Mile Zero 

Cannery Brewing 

 

Mile Zero 

- 162 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 9 

Attachment B 

Exterior Patio Layout 

 

Additional 
washroom required 

for interior load 
increase  

North 

Ellis Street 

- 163 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 9 

 
Attachment C 

Owner Impact Statement 
April 20, 2017 

Amendments to Mile Zero Wine Bar - Community Impact 

200 Ellis Street 

Penticton, BC  V2A 4L6 

• Extension of hours from midnight – 2 am (alcohol service ending @ 1:30am) 
• Patio addition (drawing submitted to Ken Kunka) 
• Increase in occupancy from 60 – 100  

Since opening in October of 2015, Mile Zero has received positive feedback from the residential and business community.  A 
few complaints we have received, is that we have had to turn away customers booking for events due to our limited occupancy 
and hours of operations.   When we opened our wine bar, we did not take into consideration the amount of corporate, winery, 
retirement, seasonal events and parties that would request to book with us.  

Occupancy Increase 

Mile Zero Wine Bar has a large space that is more than adequate to accommodate 100 persons.  The building is 100’ x 33’.  
Parking has been busy mostly on Friday afternoons between the Cannery and Mile Zero.  As of this date, we have had one 
complaint from our neighbour directly behind our business that people were (legally) parking on front of her house and we 
have dealt with it without any further issues.  Other than this parking complaint, we have not had any other concerns regarding 
parking to our knowledge.   We also have room for seven vehicles in the back of our business for customers and staff.  There 
are very few residential buildings that have street-only parking in the 100, 200 and 300 block of Ellis Street leaving ample room 
for our customers.  Many of our customers walk, take public transportation or rideshare to our wine bar.  

Hours of Operation 

The last year we have had to turn down many corporate, winery and entertainment events due to our current occupancy and 
the fact that we closed too early.  We are looking for an extension of both hours and occupancy so we may facilitate these 
requests for these special events.  It is very unlikely we would be open that late every night of the week.  As it stands, we end 
alcohol service at 10:30 pm five days a week (Sunday – Thursday).  

We are mindful of patrons leaving the building late at night and our staff will ask customers to wait indoors until their taxi or 
ride arrives.  We have a posted sign by our door advising customers to keep noise levels to a minimum when leaving the 
premises. 

Patio 

We are also requesting to build a patio on the North Side of our building (facing Cannery Brewing).  We are losing customers in 
the warmer weather because many would prefer to sit outside in the fresh air.  The drawings and landscape ideas have been 
submitted with this request and will greatly enhance the look of our building.  The patio will be closed before 11pm to comply 
with the noise bylaw and patrons moved inside our building.  There will be no loud music or live entertainment on our patio. 

Thank you for considering our requests. 

Regards, 

 

Christy Cronie  

- 164 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 9 

Attachment D 
Public Consultation 

 

 
 

 
 

Public Notice 
Sign 

Proposed 
patio 

- 165 -



- 166 -



- 167 -



- 168 -



- 169 -



- 170 -



- 171 -



- 172 -



- 173 -



Q :4{arnn
RECENÊD ù,
l,tlty-gZOtl'l 225 Van Horne St

Penticton, BC
V2A 4K3

May 5, 2017

Ken Kunka,
Building & Permitting Manager
City of Penticton
171- Main St
Penticton, BC, V2A 5Ag

Dear Mr Kunka,

Re: Mile Zero application for Liquor Primary Amendment to increase interior
occupant load from 60 to L00 persons, extension of hours to 2 am. & outdoor patio.

I live across the alley and 4 houses down from this business. In the year and a half since it has been
open, parking for the nearby residents has become a problem. It is very frustrating to come home with
a carload of groceries or luggage and not be able to park close to my home. With an increase of 4\o/o of
customers, it is very likely that this will become more of an issue.

As I requested in a letter in Feb 2015 and November 201-5, I again reiterate my request for "Area
Resident Parking" signs for the 100 and 200 blocks of Van Horne St, and the 200 Block of Abbott St.

Since staff and patrons are not allowed to smoke insicle, they go outside to smoke. My house was built
in the 1-940s and I do not have brush around it. The houses closest to the wine bar were probably built
around that time and many do have bushes in their yards and old garages. We know how dry our city
gets in the summer, and it upsets me to see more cigarette butts behind my garage. If one building
caught fire, these older neighbouring homes wouid be at great risk of burning too.

I find it very frustrating that these liquor establishments start out with reasonable numbers of patrons

and hours, but as they get their foot in the door, numbers and hours ate increased. This changes the
nature of the friendly, residential neighbourhood. What will be their next request - live music on the
outdoor patio until2 am?

In summary, I am opposed to increasing the occupant load and hours of operation because of:
1,. increased traffic in this residential neighbourhood
2. parking issues

3. noise, well into the night
4. smoking outside of the business and increased risk of fire.

Yours truly,

/wr
Shir{ey Persson

P^',"r^l

- 174 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017       File No:  Civic 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Ken Kunka, Building and Permitting Manager 
Address: 135 Winnipeg Street 

Subject: Liquor-Primary Licence Permanent Change 
 LUSO Canadian Multicultural Club (Portuguese Sporting Club of Penticton) 
 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council recommends to the Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) that it supports the 
application from the LUSO Canadian Multicultural Club (Portuguese Sporting Club of Penticton) located at 
135 Winnipeg Street for a Permanent change of hours of service from: 

• From: 4:00pm to 1:00am Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday; 
• To 2:00pm to 1:00am, Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday.  

 

Strategic priority objective 

N/A 

Background & Proposal 

The City has received an application on April 12, 2017 from the Portuguese Sporting Club located at 135 
Winnipeg Street (Attachment A), seeking a permanent amendment to their Liquor Primary Licence to alter 
their service hours. 

The non-profit society has been operating at its current location for over 30 years. The Society has 60 active 
members who participate in various recreational actives with monthly dinners. The current maximum 
occupant load is 141 persons. There is no off-street parking, which was approved as part of the building 
expansion permit in 1999. To date, there have been no complaint case files recorded for noise or parking 
related issues from the neighboring residents or businesses. 

Proposal Intent 

The society wishes to make this additional change to their operations to provide expanded services to its 
members, groups or private functions such as weddings. An outline has been provided by the Society as 
Attachment B.  

Site Context 

- 175 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

The current property is zoned C6 – Mixed Use Commercial and the use meets Zoning regulations.  There are 
no restrictions on the hours of operation under the Zoning Bylaw. The property is located in a mixed 
residential and commercial area (Map – Attachment A).  
 
Current uses near the proposed property include: 

• East – commercial;  
• North – mixed residential;  
• South – mixed residential, commercial; and 
• West – mixed residential  

There is one (1) Manufacturer/Food Primary premise (Bad Tattoo Brewery) within 100 meter radius of the 
property. 

Liquor Control and Licencing Branch (LCLB) Legislation, Policy and Bylaw Review 
 
Any business in the hospitality, entertainment or beverage industry - including bars, pubs, lounges, 
nightclubs, stadiums, theatres, recreation and convention centers - may apply for a Liquor-Primary licence. 
The only exceptions are businesses geared towards youth (which may not be licensed to serve liquor) and 
private clubs (which require a Liquor-Primary Club licence). 
 
The LCLB application process for a permanent change for a Liquor-Primary licence requires a municipal 
resolution (within 90 days) before the Province will consider the application further. The change request is 
currently under a parallel review with LCLB.  
 
The Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation requests that the City review and provide resolution related to 
the following criteria: 
 

• The location of the establishment, person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment; 
• The impact of noise on nearby residents; 
• The impact on the community if the application is approved (example - public nuisance (RCMP), 

traffic issues, etc.); and 
• Public input for the community in the immediate vicinity of the proposed endorsement service 

area(s) and how input was gathered. 
 

 
Financial implication 

Mandatory public consultation notification costs will be offset through the City’s Liquor application review 
fees. 

Analysis 

Technical Review 

As part of the Liquor Control and Licencing Branch (LCLB) requirements, the City has conducted an 
assessment of the technical criteria as well as conducting a public consultation review. In consideration of 
criteria, the following information has been provided from the City’s Liquor Licencing Technical Review 
Committee (LLTRC) with regards to this application. 

 

- 176 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

Location of establishment, person capacity and hours of service: 

• Winnipeg Street is classified as a Minor Collector route; 
• No off-street parking is required; 
• There are currently more than 100 street parking spaces along Winnipeg St., Estabrook Ave and 

Westminster Ave W within two blocks of the proposed location; 
• There is a mix of commercial, industrial and single/multi-family residential development within the 

consultation area; 
• There is no request to alter the current occupant load of 141 persons. Typically member use of the 

premise is at a much lower occupant load. 

There are no concerns. Any potential impact to the surrounding neighborhood will be governed by the 
City’s existing regulations. 

The impact of noise on nearby residents: 

• Request is only for earlier opening hours on weekdays. There should be no significant 
impact to nearby residents; 

• There are no complaint files on record regarding noise disturbances. 

There are no concerns. Any potential impact to the surrounding neighborhood will be governed by the 
City’s existing regulations. 

The impact on the community if the application is approved: 

• There are no social or institutional agencies within the vicinity of the society. 
 

There are no concerns and the Society has provided a valuable service to the community and has been a 
good neighbour to surrounding businesses and residents. 

  
Public Consultation 
 
As this application is an amendment to an existing licence, public notification was commenced as part of 
staff and the LLTRC review. Input from local residents would allow staff to engage with the applicant to 
address any concerns and provide mitigation measures prior to final recommendation to Council for 
endorsement. A notice of application and request for comment was mailed out to the business owners and 
residents within 100m (Attachment C) of the subject property on April 28th. Public Notice Signage placed 
along Winnipeg Street and two public notices were placed in the local newspapers.  As a result, there have 
been no comments received at the time of preparation of this report.  Citizens are also provided the 
opportunity to comment on the application the day of the Council meeting held May 23, 2017. 
 

LLTRC Recommendation: 

Based upon the comments received by the Liquor Licensing Technical Review Committee and consultation 
with staff and public, it is recommended that the proposed application be supported. 

Council can choose to support the application as presented or modify the request with further restrictions 
such as use or hours. Should Council deny the application then the applicant will be informed of that 
decision and a Council resolution outlining the reason for denial will be forwarded to the LCLB. 

 

- 177 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council denies support of the LUSO Canadian Multicultural Club (Portuguese Sporting Club of 
Penticton) permanent change request. 

2. THAT Council refer back to staff for further review. 
 
Attachments 

Attachment A – Location and Zoning Map  
Attachment B – Applicant statement 
Attachment C - Public Consultation Map  
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Ken Kunka AScT, RBO 
Building and Permitting Manager, LLTRC Chairperson 
 
Approvals 

Director of 
Development Services 

 
CAO 

AH 
 

PW 

 
  

- 178 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

Attachment A 
Site Map 

 

 

 

C6 Zoning 

 

 

Multi-family 

Bad Tattoo 
Brewery  

N 

135 Winnipeg St. 

135 Winnipeg St. 

- 179 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

 

Attachment B 
Applicant Statement 

 

 
 

  

- 180 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

Attachment C 
Public Consultation Map 

 
 

 

  

Front Entrance - Winnipeg 

Public notice 

- 181 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 
 
 
Date: May 23, 2017       File No:  PRJ2016-101     
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Blake Laven, Planning Manager  
 
Subject:   Temporary Use Permit Application (TUP) to allow for temporary construction offices  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
THAT Council approve “Temporary Use Permit PL2016-7761”, a permit to allow for ‘temporary offices in portable 
trailers’ on Lot A, District Lot 3429S, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 23195, Except Plan 37288, located at 
1704 Government Street, for a period of 3 years.   
 
Strategic priority objective 
 
The subject application is in support of the patient care tower project leading to a healthier and more livable 
community.  
 
Background 
 
The subject lands are located directly across Government Street 
from the where the new Patient Care Tower (David E. Kampe 
Tower) is currently under construction. The property currently 
accommodates the Britco factory, a production facility that 
manufactures modular housing and trailers.  
 
The subject property is split zoned, with the majority of the 
property zoned M1 (General Industrial), and with a smaller 
portion fronting Government Street zoned as C4 (General 
Commercial).  The C4 portion of the property was zoned in 1992 
with the intent to accommodate a medical office building that 
never proceeded.   
 
Ellis Don, the P3 partner responsible for the construction and 
management of the new patient care tower, has leased the 
portion of the subject lands that are zoned C4 to accommodate 
their construction field trailers - for themselves and their sub-trades. The C4 zone, however, does not permit 

Figure 1: Zoning Bylaw Map showing the split 
zoning of 1704 Government Street 

- 182 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 8 

offices within temporary buildings. As such, Ellis Don has applied for a Temporary Use Permit to allow for the 
use during the construction of the tower.  
 
Proposal  
 
The applicants are requesting temporary use permit approval for ‘temporary offices in portable trailers’ at 
1704 Government Street for a period of three years.  
 
Financial implication 
 
N/A 
 
Technical Review 
 
This application was discussed by the City’s Technical Planning Committee (TPC) in October of 2016. The 
committee did not have any objections to the use of the property as temporary offices. Issues such as 
servicing with electrical, potable water and sewer have been accommodated through the building permit 
process. Concerns were raised, however, over the traffic safety of workers crossing back and forth across 
Government Street. These concerns have been communicated to the applicant. It is understood that 
workers should utilize the existing crosswalks at Government Street and Carmi Avenue and at Government 
Street and Industrial Avenue.  
 
Analysis 
 
Approve Temporary Use Permit “TUP PL2016-7761” 
 
As Britco is currently remodeling their operations to build more modular housing and less construction 
trailers within their factory, they have excess space in their parking lot. The use of this excess space for 
portable office trailers is considered a good use of the space during the construction of the hospital tower. 
The intent is to remove the trailers once the tower is complete (2019).  
 
When considering a Temporary Use Permit, The Official Community Plan provides guidelines to follow.  
 

• Is not noxious or undesirable; 
• Does not have a negative impact on adjacent lands; 
• Does not create a significant increase on City services or infrastructure; 
• Complies with development permit area guidelines;  
• Operates at hours that do not disturb the peace and quiet of surrounding neighbourhood; 
• Does not permanently alter the site; 
• Complies with conditions specified by Council; and 
• Complies with all federal and provincial statutes. 

 
In this case, staff consider that the proposal generally meets all of the above objectives. The use is not 
noxious or undesirable. Generous landscaping exists along the boulevard. Given the location of the use, 

- 183 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 8 

there are no immediately adjacent residences or really businesses that will be affected by the temporary 
offices.   
 
Given the above, staff recommend that Council issue the permit for the full three years permitted by the 
Local Government Act.  
 
Deny or refer Temporary Use Permit “TUP PL2016-7761” 
 
If Council feels this is not an appropriate use for the subject property, Council may wish to deny the request. 
Alternatively, Council may wish to approve the request with conditions that Council feels are warranted.  
 
Alternate recommendations 
 
THAT “Temporary Use Permit PL2016-7761” be denied. 
 
THAT “Temporary Use Permit PL2016-7761” be referred back to staff.   
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Subject property location map 
Attachment B – Images of subject property  
Attachment C – Temporary Use Permit PL2016-7761 for issuance 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Blake Laven, RPP, MCIP 
Planning Manager 
 
 
Approvals 
 

Director 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

AH 

 
PW 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 184 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 8 

Attachment A 
Subject Property Location Map 

 

 
Attachment B 

Images of Subject Property 

Subject Property 

Area 

under 

application 

- 185 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 8 

 

 
Figure 2: Image of trailers from Government Street looking south 

 

 
Figure 3: Image of trailers (on right) looking north on Government Street 

 
 

Attachment C 
Temporary Use Permit PL2016-7761 for Issuance 

- 186 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 

- 187 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 8 

 
 
 
 

- 188 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 8 

 
 
 
 

- 189 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017                File Nos:    DVP PL2016-7608  
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer  
From: Blake Laven, Planning Manager  
Address:  838 Oakville Street (formerly 798 Revelstoke Avenue) 
 
Subject: Re-issuance of Development Variance Permit DVP PL2016-7608 
  
Staff Recommendation 

THAT “Development Variance Permit PL2016-7608” for Lot A, Plan EPP65038, District Lot 2, Similkameen 
Division Yale District, Group 7, located at 838 Oakville Street (formerly 798 Revelstoke Avenue), be re-issued 
with a drawing outlining the off-site works required as part of the development.     

Strategic Priority Objective 

N/A 

Background 

In July of 2016, Council supported a zoning amendment and development variance permit in support of a 
unique development on 798 Revelstoke Avenue (now 838 Oakville Street). The zoning amendment was 
required because the developer was looking at constructing two duplexes on one lot and the current zoning 
only permitted one duplex.  
 
While the zoning amendment was supported by both staff and Council, the application also involved a 
request by the developer to vary certain off-site upgrade requirements. In accordance with the City’s 
Subdivision and Development Bylaw, the road fronting the development site was required to be upgraded 
up to the centre line of the road. In this case, the road was in a substandard condition and to bring the road 
up to City standards, asphalt, curb, gutter, sidewalk and stormwater management were identified as 
requirements.  
 
The request from the developer was to look at a reduced standard, without sidewalks. The developer made 
the commitment to finish off the shoulder with asphalt and landscaping. No plans, however, were submitted 
at the time and it was a bit unclear as to what bylaw requirement was actually being waived. Council passed 
a resolution waiving the requirement to install sidewalks, but did not speak to curb, gutters or stormwater 
management.  
 

- 190 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 11 

The development is now complete, except for landscaping and off-site works. There has been some 
confusion, between the Development Engineering Department and the developer over what the 
expectation are for the offsite works.  
 
Staff’s position is that Council only waived the requirement for sidewalks meaning full design with concrete 
curbing, gutters and stormwater management is required. The developer, on the other hand, is of the 
opinion that Council agreed to only require the asphalting of the shoulder, as was the request from the 
developer. The minutes of the meeting seem to support staff’s potion, but the intent is unclear.  
 
For these reasons, Staff are bringing the question back to Council.  
 
To provide greater clarity to the question, staff have provided a drawing showing the reduced standard. If it 
was Council’s intent to only require the asphalting of the shoulder, this drawing will be attached to the 
variance permit. This will be done through an administrative amendment to the original permit. 
 
Consultation  
 
The Local Government Act requires notification prior to approval of a variance permit. In this case, however, 
notification has already occurred. Staff have not provided additional notification, nor does staff feel 
delegations and submissions are warranted in this case, as this really is just the opportunity for Council to 
provide clarification on an already approved permit.   
 
Financial Implication 

If Council were to support waiving the requirement for concrete curb and gutters, the City may at some 
future time have to install these works at taxpayers’ expense. These works, however are not in the 
immediate City Capital plan. 
 
The total cost of the works including the concrete curbing is estimated at $20,000. If Council is to support 
the request, the cost to the developer is estimated at $13,000 (for just the grading and asphalt).   
 
Development Engineering Review 

The City’s Development Engineering department recommends that the street be fully upgraded with curb 
gutter and sidewalk. This is the City standard. In the absence of this standard, the Development Engineer 
recommends that storm water be taken into account into any design, whether just asphalt or with concrete 
curb and gutter. With the addition of paving, there is always the risk of changing storm water patterns, 
perhaps to the detriment of neighbouring properties. Having designed curbing will mitigate this potential 
hazard.  

Analysis  

Approve request for administrative change to DVP PL2016-7608 

If Council’s intent was to support the developer’s request to replace the frontage upgrade requirement with 
just asphalt as was offered in the letter of intent, then Council should support the administrative 

- 191 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 11 

amendment to the permit. Attaching the drawing to the permit will ensure that it is clear what Council’s 
intent is and what the developer is responsible to construct.  

Deny request for administrative change to DVP PL2016-7608 

If it was not Council’s intention to waive the installation of concrete curb and gutter works, and if Council 
does not feel that the concrete curb and gutter should be waived, Council should deny the request for 
administrative amendment.  If Council denies the request, the City would go in and build the works to City 
standards, except for the sidewalks (as was waived in the previous Council resolution) at the developer’s 
cost. 

Alternate Recommendation 

1. THAT Council deny the request for administrative change to “Development Variance Permit PL2016-
7608”. 

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B:   Images of Subject Property  
Attachment C: Original letter submitted by developer requesting variance and waiving of sidewalk 
Attachment C: DVP PL2016-7608 for re-issuance 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Blake Laven, MCIP, RPP 
Planning Manager 
 
Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH 

 
PW 

- 192 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 11 

Attachment A    
Subject Property Location Map 

 
 
 

 

  

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

- 193 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 11 

Attachment B  
Images of the Subject Property 

 

 

Figure 1: View from the corner of Oakville Street and Revelstoke Avenue 

 

Figure 2: View from corner of Oakville Street and the rear lane 

 

- 194 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 11 

Attachment C – 
Letter of Rationale 

 

 

- 195 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 11 

 

  

- 196 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 11 

Attachment D  
DVP 

 

 

- 197 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 11 

 
 

- 198 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 11 

 
 
 
 

- 199 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 11 

 

- 200 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 
 
 
Date: May 23, 2017        File: PRJ 2016-101  
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer  
From: Blake Laven, Planning Manager  
 

Subject:   Adoption of Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
THAT Council amend the conditions for approval of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07”, outlined in 
Council Resolution 25/2017, as follows:  
 

• Amending Condition 2 (off site traffic calming) and Condition 3 (tree replacement) removing the 
requirement to bond for the works prior to zoning adoption; and  

• Removing Condition 5 (geotechnical covenant) in its entirety 
 
AND THAT Council rescind third reading and give third reading as amended to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
No.  2017-07” , changing the Zoning Bylaw number from 2011-23 to 2017-08; 
 
AND THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07”.  
 
Background 
 

On January 17, 2017 City Council gave first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2017-07”, a bylaw which 
put zoning in place for a 110 lot residential subdivision at 1830 Ridgedale Avenue, called the Ridge. A Public 
Hearing was held on February 7th, and third reading to the bylaw was subsequently given on February 28th, 
after some minor changes to the land use plan were made.  
 
As part of that approval a number of conditions were outlined that the developer was responsible to 
complete prior to adoption of the bylaw. Staff can report that the majority of these conditions have now 
been met and are at this time recommending that Council adopt the bylaw so that the development of the 
lands may proceed.  
 
In those instances where the conditions have not been fully met, staff are confident the intent will be met at 
a later stage in the development process. Follows is a list of the conditions that Council placed on final 
adoption of the bylaw and how the conditions have been met:  
 
 
 

- 201 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 7 

Condition 1:  “Adoption of “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw 2017-06” 
 

 Bylaw 2017-06 was the accompanying future land use amendment bylaw to the subject 
zoning bylaw and was adopted on February 7, 2016.  

 
Condition 2:  “All of the recommendations regarding traffic calming contained in the Traffic Impact 

Assessment prepared by Wall Consulting Group dated December 16, 2016 must be designed 
to the satisfaction of the City’s Development Engineer and bonded for prior to final approval” 

 
 Traffic calming along Lawrence Avenue and other areas identified in the report, have been 

included in the subdivision design plans. These plans have tentatively been approved by 
the City’s Development Engineer and Public Works Department. The works are required to 
be completed prior to completion of the subdivision. Staff are confident that a bond is not 
required at this time and are requesting that Council amend this condition removing the 
requirement to bond for the works at this time.  

 
Condition 3: “Tree Replacement Plan prepared to the satisfaction of the City’s Park Supervisor, to replace 

the 247 trees that were removed prior to earth works commencing. Bonding for the works 
were also required as part of zoning approval.”  

 
 Tree replacement has been integrated into the parks plan and into the engineering plans 

for the road boulevards. Bonding for the trees will happen at the time of parks bonding. 
Staff are recommending that the bonding condition not be required at this time as the 
intent will be satisfied in another way (at the time the parks are bonded for at preliminary 
subdivision approval stage). 

 
Condition 4: “Design for the parks and walkway to the satisfaction of the Parks Supervisor, with all works 

bonded for at the time of subdivision approval.”  
 

 The developer’s consultants have submitted plans for the two parks and trail. The first 
park is a continuation of the Sendero Park and features minor landscaping upgrades and 
the installation of some benches. This park is intended to be more passive.  
 
The larger park located in Phase II of the subdivision is intended as a neighbourhood park 
with several amenities, including a basketball half court, kids play structure and a fenced 
dog park. The park will be developed at the full cost of the developer. The city will take 
over the park at the time the subdivision plan is deposited, which will not happen until 
the City’s Approving Officer confirms that the park is constructed to a standard that the 
City is happy to take over.     

 
Condition 5:  Registration of the geotechnical report prepared by Ecora Engineering dated August 17, 2016 

as a covenant against the development lands.  
 

 This condition will be fulfilled through the subdivision process. Staff are recommending 
that the bylaw be adopted without this requirement being fulfilled.  

- 202 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 7 

 
Analysis 
 
Support amendments to bylaw adoption conditions  
 
As the conditions of adoption have either been fulfilled or satisfied through other means, staff are 
recommending that Council now adopt the zoning amendment bylaw.  
 
Once the bylaw is adopted, The City’s Approving Office can issue preliminary layout approval for the 
subdivision, which will allow for the development to proceed to the lot creation stage.  
 
Deny amendments to bylaw adoption conditions 
 
Council may feel that bonding for the off-site traffic works and tree replacement are warranted at this time 
and that the geotechnical covenant should be placed on the title of the property prior to zoning approval. If 
that is the case, Council does not have to amend the conditions or adopt the bylaw at this time. If that is the 
direction that Council takes, the developer will have to bond for the works and go through the process to 
have the covenant registered at the land title office. This process could take up to a month.  
 
Alternatives 
 
THAT Council not amend the conditions and “Zoning Amendment Bylaw 2017-07”. 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Location Map 
Attachment B – Images of development  
Attachment C – Park design  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Blake Laven, RPP, MCIP 
Planning Manager 
 

 
  Director CAO 

  AH 

 

PW 
 

- 203 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 7 

Attachment A 
Subject Property Location Map 

 

 
 
 
 

- 204 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 7 

Attachment B 
Images  

 

 
Figure 1: Drone image of subject property looking south west, with Sendero canyon houses in foreground 

 

 
Figure 2: Drone image of subject property looking west with Sendero Canyon park in the foreground 

 
 
 
 

- 205 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 7 

Attachment C 
Park Design 

 

 

- 206 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 7 

 

- 207 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-07 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2011-232017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2011-23 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2011-23 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Change the zoning designations for Lot 1, District Lot 2710, Similkameen Division Yale District, 
Plan 21103, located at 1830 Ridgedale Avenue, in accordance with Schedule “A” attached 
hereto and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this 17 day of January, 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this 7 day of February, 2017 

READ A SECOND time AS AMENDED 
this 

28 day of February, 2017 

READ A THIRD time this 28 day of February, 2017 

RESCIND THIRD and read THIRD as 
AMENDED 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the 27 day of January, 2017 and the 1 day of February, 2017 in the 
Penticton Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 208 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’ 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-07 
 

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________ 

FG R1 

From  
(Current Zoning) 

1830 Ridgedale Avenue - Rezone 

To Proposed Zoning: 

- 209 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017                                    File No:     RZ PL2017-7903 
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer                     DVP PL2017-7904 
From: Randy Houle, Planner I                & DP PL2017-7905 
Address:  380 White Avenue East                  
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37 
 Development Variance Permit PL2017-7904 
 Development Permit PL2017-7905 
  
  
Staff Recommendation 

Zoning Amendment 

THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” a bylaw to add Section 10.6.4.6: “In the case of that part of Lots 
18-20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, located at 380 
White Avenue East, two duplexes with a combined Floor Area Ratio of 1.15 are permitted,” be given first 
reading and forwarded to the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing; 

AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37,” a 4.0m x 4.0m corner cut on the North 
East portion of the property is registered with the Land Title Office; 

AND THAT prior to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37,” a lot consolidation of Lots 18-20 
shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, is registered with 
the land title office.  

Development Variance Permit 

THAT delegations and submissions be heard for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7904” for that part of 
Lots 18-20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, located 
at 380 White Avenue East, a permit to waive the requirement to provide on-site parking for four duplex suites, 
to decrease the minimum front yard from 4.5m to 3.0m and to decrease the minimum rear yard from 6.0m to 
3.0m;  

AND THAT “DVP PL2017-7904” be considered only after adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37”. 

Development Permit 

THAT Council, subject to adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37,” approve “Development Permit 
PL2017-7905”, for Lots 18-20 shown on Plan B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District 
Plan 755, located at 380 White Avenue East, a permit that allows for the construction of two duplexes.   

- 210 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 2 of 19 

Strategic priority objective 

N/A 

Background 

The subject property (Attachment ‘A’) is zoned RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) and designated by the City’s 
Official Community Plan as MR (Medium Density Residential). Photos of the site are included as Attachment 
‘D’. The lot is approximately 642.82m2 (6919.45ft2) and features a single detached dwelling and garage which 
will be demolished. The surrounding properties are primarily zoned RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) and RM2 
(Low Density Multiple Housing). Surrounding properties are designated in the OCP as MR (Medium Density 
Residential). The subject property fronts both Papineau Street and White Avenue East.   

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct two duplex buildings containing four 1350ft2 units with one-
bedroom basement suites in each. Since the proposed use is not permitted in the RD2 zone, a site-specific 
zoning amendment is required to allow for two duplexes in the RD2 (Duplex Housing: Lane) zone. 

The proposed amendment will add: Section 10.6.4.6: “In the case of that part of Lots 18-20 shown on Plan 
B4556; Block 30 District Lot 202 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, located at 380 White Avenue 
East, two duplexes with a combined Floor Area Ratio of 1.15 are permitted.” 

Secondly, the applicant is requesting a Development Variance Permit to vary the following sections of 
Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08: 

• Section 8.3.3.1: To waive the requirement to provide on-site parking for four duplex suites.  
• Section 10.6.2.6: To decrease the minimum front yard from 4.5m to 3.0m. 
• Section 10.6.2.8.i: To decrease the minimum rear yard from 6.0m to 3.0m.  

Lastly, the property is located within the General Multiple Family Development Permit area and requires 
approval for the form and character of the duplexes and to address landscaping requirements.   

Financial implication 

N/A 

Technical Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. Through this process, it was determined that a 4.0m x 4.0m corner cut on 
the North East portion of the property will be taken by the City. As per City of Penticton Building Bylaw 94-95 
section 7.1.5, storm water/drainage is to be maintained on site. The developer has been advised to contact 
the electrical department to confirm loads and service characteristics as connection costs could be 
substantial (approximately $15,000). If the requests for the zoning amendment, variances and development 
permit are supported, BC Building Code and City bylaw provisions, such as height restrictions, will apply. 

Development Statistics 

- 211 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 3 of 19 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the rezoning 
application:  
 

Item Requirement RD2 zone Proposed 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 
Maximum Density: 

40% 
0.95 FAR 

37.06% 
1. 15 FAR 

Vehicle Parking: 
1 per unit + 1 per duplex suite (8 

required) 
1 per unit (4 total) 

Variance required for suite 
parking 

Required Setbacks  
Front yard (East, Papineau Street): 
Exterior yard (North, White Avenue): 
Interior yard (South): 
Rear yard (West): 

 
4.5m 
3.0m 
1.5m  
6.0m  

 
3.0m (variance required) 

3.0m  
1.5m  

3.0m (variance required)  

Maximum Building Height: 10.5m 8.33m 

Other Information: 
Subject property is located within the General Multiple Family 
Development Permit Area. 

 

Analysis 
 
Zoning Amendment 
 
Support “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” 
 
The site is situated in an area experiencing some densification. The OCP designation for this site is Medium 
Density Residential (MR), which supports duplex development. Staff consider that the zoning amendment to 
allow for two duplexes with suites represents best use of the land for the following reasons: 

• The proposal is consistent with the OCP’s view that infill residential development is an appropriate 
method of maximizing the use of land and increasing housing choices for Penticton residents. 

• The OCP encourages densification in areas where existing services can accommodate higher 
densities, which is the case here. 

• The proximity to downtown, schools and nearby services encourages more walking and active forms 
of transportation. 

• The current proposal will convert a single family dwelling into eight units.   
 

Staff considers that the design is suitable and consistent with the redevelopment trends in the area. The 
location of the site and characteristics of the surrounding neighbourhood make it appropriate for residential 
densification. Although the FAR of 1.15 is well above the 0.95 maximum, the lot coverage (37%) is less than 
the 40% maximum permitted. The height of the building (8.33m) is well under the 10.5m permitted. The 
calculation of Floor Area Ratio does not include basements. Since the lower suites are primarily above grade, 
they are considered to be the first storey and are included in the FAR calculation. The applicant could lower 
the duplex suites further into the ground which would exclude the floor area from the calculation but that 

- 212 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 4 of 19 

would decrease the amount of light and quality of life for individuals residing in the suite. Given the above, 
staff recommends that Council support “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” and forward the 
application to the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing for comments from the public. 

Deny/Refer Zoning Amendment 

Council may consider that the proposed amendment is not suitable for this site or that the density is too 
high for the site. If this is the case, Council should deny the bylaw amendment. Alternatively, Council may 
wish to refer the matter back to staff to work with the applicant with any direction that Council considers 
appropriate.  

Development Variance Permit 

Support Variances 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to be mindful of any hardship on the 
property that makes following the bylaw difficult or impossible; whether approval of the variance would 
cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is reasonable.  
 
Section 8.3.3.1: To waive the requirement to provide on-site parking for four duplex suites.  
 

• The proposed development is required to provide a total of eight parking spaces on-site (1 per 
dwelling unit + 1 per suite). The current proposal has four on-site parking spaces for the principal 
residences. Driveways have been re-arranged by the developer to create four on-street parking 
spaces along the property’s street frontage. There is additional street parking along White Avenue 
and Papineau Street. For this reason, it is reasonable to support the variance.    

 
Section 10.6.2.6: To decrease the minimum front yard from 4.5m to 3.0m. 
 

• The proposed development will result in a 3.0m front yard along Papineau Street.  The height of the 
building (8.3m) is less than the 10.5m permitted which will lessen its impact on Papineau Street. If 
the property was rezoned to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing), then the minimum front yard 
would be 3.0m, which this property would meet.  
 

Section 10.6.2.8.i: To decrease the minimum rear yard from 6.0m to 3.0m.  
 

• The proposed development will result in a 3.0m setback from the duplexes to the west. The duplexes 
along Beames Lane were built with a 3.0m rear yard as well. A 3.0m rear yard will still allow adequate 
room for a deck and grass amenity area. There are no bedrooms on the west side of the building 
with windows which will assist in reducing any privacy concerns. Trees and fencing will provide 
additional screening from the neighbouring duplexes.  

 
Supporting the variances listed above would help to maximize the living space of the duplexes, with little 
impact on the surrounding neighbourhood. Staff considers that the variances requested are reasonable and 
recommend that Council, after hearing from any affected neighbours, support the application.  
 

- 213 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 5 of 19 

Deny/Refer Variances 

Council may consider that the proposed variances will negatively affect the neighborhood or that the 
number of variances are too significant. If this is the case, Council should deny the variances. 

Development Permit 

Support Development Permit 

The subject property is located within the General Multiple Family Development Permit Area.  As a result, a 
Development Permit is required. Although this Development Permit can be staff-issued, it has been included 
in this report for Council’s decision in order to streamline the approvals process. The Development Permit 
Area guidelines are intended to address the form and character of new multi-family buildings. The objective 
of these guidelines, according to the OCP, is to “ensure that the siting, form, character and landscaping of 
new development and exterior renovations and additions to existing buildings are compatible with the 
context of the surrounding neighbourhood and that site access, parking, storage and landscaping matters 
are satisfactorily resolved, and generally, development is of high aesthetic quality.”   
 

• In the current proposal, the building shape, roof line and architectural features such as window and 
door detailing are sufficiently varied and create visual interest. 

• The entrances have a street orientation with entrance walkways and picture windows. This creates 
an aesthetically pleasing connection to the street. 

• The landscape plan features a variety of different plants, flowers, trees and grass.   
• Garbage and recycling bins will be screened within an enclosure. 
• The developer has incorporated an old rock wall into the plans to add character to the development.  

 
Staff consider that the plans submitted meet the intent of the DPA guidelines and generally conform to the 
zoning bylaw. As such, staff recommend that Council approve the Development Permit application. 
 
Deny/Refer Development Permit  

Council may consider that the proposal does not reflect the current built form of the neighbourhood, or that 
the development should soften the impact on neighbouring properties. If this is the case, Council should 
deny the permit. 

Alternate Recommendations 

1. THAT Council deny first reading of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” and deny support for DVP 
PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905. 

2. THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” but deny support for DVP 
PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905. 

3. THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” and support DVP PL2017-
7904 & DP PL2017-7905 with conditions that Council feels are appropriate. 

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Property Location Map 

- 214 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 6 of 19 

Attachment B : Zoning Map 
Attachment C: OCP Map 
Attachment D:   Photos of Subject Property  
Attachment E: Site Plan 
Attachment F: Elevations 
Attachment G: Landscape Plan 
Attachment H: Letter of Intent 
Attachment I:  “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7904” 
Attachment J:  “Development Permit PL2017-7905” 
Attachment K: “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37” 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Randy Houle 
Planner I 

Approvals 

 

DDS 

 

AH 

CAO 
 

PW 

  
 

- 215 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 7 of 19 

 Attachment ‘A’ –Property Location Map 

 

Figure 1: Subject Property Location Map 

 

- 216 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 8 of 19 

Attachment ‘B’ – Zoning Map 

 

Figure 2: Zoning Map 

- 217 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 9 of 19 

Attachment ‘C’- OCP Map 

 

Figure 3: OCP Map 

- 218 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 10 of 19 

Attachment ‘D’ – Photos of Subject Property 

            

Figure 4: East View (from Papineau Street) 

 

 

Figure 5: North View (from White Avenue East) 

 

- 219 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 11 of 19 

Attachment ‘E’ - Site Plan 

 

Figure 6: Site Plan 

- 220 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 12 of 19 

Attachment ‘F’ - Elevations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 7: North Elevation (from White Avenue East) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 8: East Elevation (from Papineau Street) 

- 221 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 13 of 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9: West Elevation (from Duplexes on Beames Lane) 

 

 

 

Figure 10: South Elevation (facing 627 Papineau Street) 

- 222 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 14 of 19 

Attachment ‘G’ – Landscape Plan 

 

Figure 11: Landscape Plan 

- 223 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 15 of 19 

Attachment ‘H’- Letter of Intent 

 

Figure 12: Letter of Intent 

 

 

              

 

- 224 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 16 of 19 

  Attachment ‘I’- “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7904” 

                       

 

- 225 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 17 of 19 

 

                           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 226 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 18 of 19 

Attachment ‘J’- “Development Permit PL2017-7905” 

 

- 227 -



 
Council Report RZ PL2017-7903, DVP PL2017-7904 & DP PL2017-7905  Page 19 of 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 228 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-37 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Add under 10.6 RD2 – Duplex Housing: Lane 
 

10.6.4 SITE SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 
 
.6 “In the case of that part of Lots 18-20 shown on Plan B4556, Block 30 District Lot 202 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 755, located at 380 White Avenue East, two duplexes 
with a combined Floor Area Ratio of 1.15 are permitted.” 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2017 and the __ day of ____, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 

      
 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 229 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-37

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

60
1

60
1

60
160
1

60
1

60
9

60
9

60
960
9

60
9

62
5

62
5

62
562
5

62
5

60
0

60
0

60
060
0

60
0

60
8

60
8

60
860
8

60
8

61
6

61
6

61
661
6

61
6

62
4

62
4

62
462
4

62
4

62
7

62
7

62
762
7

62
7

64
1

64
1

64
164
1

64
1

360
360
360
360
360

380
380
380
380
380

60
2

60
2

60
260
2

60
2

61
0

61
0

61
061
0

61
0

61
8

61
8

61
861
8

61
8

62
6

62
6

62
662
6

62
6

63
4

63
4

63
463
4

63
4

64
2

64
2

64
264
2

64
2

60
3

60
3

60
360
3

60
3

61
1

61
1

61
161
1

61
1

61
9

61
9

61
961
9

61
9

65
3

65
3

65
365
3

65
3

63
1

63
1

63
163
1

63
1

64
9

64
9

64
964
9

64
9

55555

6161616161

59
8

59
8

59
859
8

59
8

34
1

34
1

34
134
1

34
1

58
8

58
8

58
858
8

58
8

58
0

58
0

58
058
0

58
0

365
365
365
365
365

7777

60
8

60
8

60
860
8

60
8

58
3

58
3

58
358
3

58
3

58
7

58
7

58
758
7

58
7

61
0

61
0

61
061
0

61
0

61
4

61
4

61
461
4

61
4

59
6

59
6

59
659
6

59
6

BRAID
 ST

BRAID
 ST

BRAID
 ST

BRAID
 ST

BRAID
 ST

WHITE A
VE E

WHITE A
VE E

WHITE A
VE E

WHITE A
VE E

WHITE A
VE E

   00-300

   00-300

   00-300
   00-300

   00-300

B
RA

ID
 ST 500-600

B
RA

ID
 ST 500-600

B
RA

ID
 ST 500-600

B
RA

ID
 ST 500-600

B
RA

ID
 ST 500-600

WHITE AVE E 400-500

WHITE AVE E 400-500

WHITE AVE E 400-500

WHITE AVE E 400-500

WHITE AVE E 400-500
 

T 500-600
 

T 500-600
 

T 500-600
 

T 500-600
 

T 500-600

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 500-600

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 500-600

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 500-600

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 500-600

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 500-600

WHITE AVE E 300-400

WHITE AVE E 300-400

WHITE AVE E 300-400

WHITE AVE E 300-400

WHITE AVE E 300-400

B
RA

ID
 ST 600-700

B
RA

ID
 ST 600-700

B
RA

ID
 ST 600-700

B
RA

ID
 ST 600-700

B
RA

ID
 ST 600-700

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 600-700

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 600-700

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 600-700

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 600-700

PA
PIN

EAU
 ST 600-700

WHITE AVE  

WHITE AVE  

WHITE AVE  
WHITE AV   

WHITE AVE  

B
UR

N
S ST 600-700

B
UR

N
S ST 600-700

B
UR

N
S ST 600-700

B
UR

N
S ST 600-700

B
UR

N
S ST 600-700

Site Specific Zoning Amendment to Permit Two Duplexes With a 
Combined Floor Area Ratio of 1.15 at 380 White Ave E

- 230 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 23, 2017      File No:  RZ PL 2017-7899 & DVP PL7900  
To: Peter Weeber, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Audrey Tanguay, Senior Planner 
Address:  1498 Leir Street 
 
Subject: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38 & OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39 
 Development Variance Permit PL2017-7900 
  
Staff Recommendation 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
 
THAT “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38”, a bylaw to amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08  to rezone Lot 
3, District Lot 250, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir Street,  from R1 (Large 
Lot Residential) to C1 (Commercial Transition) be introduced, read a first time and be forwarded to the June 
6, 2017 Public Hearing; 

 
Development Variance Permit 

THAT delegations and submissions for “Development Variance Permit PL2017-7900” for Lot 3, District Lot 
250, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir Street, a permit to reduce the 
required parking from 11 stalls to 4 stalls and, to reduce the minimum distance from the driveway to the 
flanking street curb from 10 metres to 7 metres, be heard at the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing; 

OCP 

AND THAT “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39” being a bylaw to include Lot 3, District 
Lot 250, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir Street, in the General Tourist 
Commercial Development Permit Area Schedule “H” of Official Community Plan Bylaw No 2002-20 be 
introduced, read a first time and forwarded to the June 6, 2017 Public Hearing; 
 
AND THAT Council consider “DVP PL2017-7900” following the adoption of “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 
2017-38”. 

Strategic priority objective   

This application meets the strategic pillars of creating a sustainable city and a livable city, through increasing 
small scale commercial activities where existing services already exist and in areas close to transit, 
institutional use and employment centers.   

- 231 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 2 of 20 

 

Background 

The subject property (Attachment ‘A’) is designated as LR (Low Density Residential) according to OCP Bylaw 
2002-20 and is zoned R1 (Large Lot Residential) under Zoning Bylaw 2017-08. The 607 m2 (0.15 acre) 
property is currently vacant.  A single detached dwelling was recently removed from the site.  The property is 
located at the corner of Carmi Avenue and Leir Street. The surrounding properties are primarily zoned R1 
(Large Lot Residential), I (Institutional) and C1 (Commercial Transition). In the past five years, two properties 
on Carmi Avenue have been rezoned from R1 (Large Lot Residential) to C1 (Commercial Transition) to 
accommodate medical buildings. Surrounding properties are designated by the OCP as LR (Low Density 
Residential) and A (Administration/Institutional).   

The applicant intends to build a new two storey 304m2 medical building. The development is intended for 
two doctors and 2-3 support staff.  The vehicular access to this building is from the lane directly 
perpendicular to Carmi Avenue.   

Proposal 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the zoning of the property from R1 (Large Lot Residential) to 
C1 (Commercial Transition), as identified in Zoning Bylaw 2017-08.  

Additionally, the applicant is seeking a Development Variance Permit to vary the following sections of 
Zoning Bylaw 2017-08: 

• Section 6.5. To reduce the parking requirement for a medical building  from 10 stalls to 4 stalls  
• Section  6.1.4 To waive the requirement to covenant with the City by agreement  for off-site parking 

 
Last, the applicant is also seeking to vary the following section of Subdivision and Development Bylaw  
2004-81: Schedule “G” 12.0 Driveways/Crossovers Section 12.7 Driveways to corner lots must be 
located a minimum 10m where the flanking street is classified a collector.  
 

Project Specifications 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics as indicated on the submitted plans:  

Item 
Requirement 

C1 Zone 
Provided on Plans 

Maximum Lot Coverage: 40% 26% 

Vehicle Parking: 
1 per 30m2 

Total: 10 stalls 
 

Total: 4 stalls (Variance required) 

Bicycle Parking Class 1: 3 
Class 2: 3 

 
 

8stalls 
3 stalls 

 

- 232 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 3 of 20 

Required Setbacks 
Principal Building 
Front yard  
Rear yard 
Interior Side yard  
Exterior side yard 

 
 

3.0m 
6.0m 
1.5m 
4.5m 

 

 
 

5.5m 
                                    11.5m 

1.5m 
4.5m 

 
Maximum Building Height: 10.5m 7.5(2 storey) 

 

Development Engineering Review 

This application was forwarded to the City’s Technical Planning Committee and reviewed by the Engineering 
and Public Works Departments. No frontage upgrades will be required as part of this application and 
servicing requirements have been identified and will be included as part of the building permit application.   

 Financial implication 

N/A 
 
Analysis 
 
Support Zoning amendment  
 
The LR (Low Density Residential) OCP designation allows for small scale neighbourhood commercial uses 
such as convenience stores and small scale institutional uses and provides a number of guidelines for 
consideration of rezoning applications. The guidelines and staff’s comments are as follows: 
 

• Maximum commercial lot area of 2000m2: The subject property is 607m2 and is considerably under 
the maximum size permitted for a commercial property in the LR (Low Density Residential) 
designation of the OCP. 

 
• Commercial use is located on a collector road and on an intersection: The property is located at the 

intersection of Carmi Avenue and Leir Street. Carmi Avenue is an urban collector road therefore 
the intent of this guideline is met.  

    
• Provides screening along a property line that abuts residentially zoned areas: The site plan submitted 

in support of the rezoning application specifies landscaping adjacent to the residential property 
on Leir Street. Staff feel that the installation of screen fencing and landscaping will help diminish 
any undesirable externalities from the commercial use of the property.  Staff is also proposing to 
include this property into a development permit area which will then secure suitable landscaping 
and screening for the site.    

 
• The size, scale and scope of the proposed use are compatible with the character of the area:  In the past 

five years, two properties to the East on Carmi Avenue have been converted to medical buildings. 
In 2012, Council approved the conversion of a single detached dwelling into a commercial 

- 233 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 4 of 20 

building (medical clinic) and in 2013, Council also endorsed the construction of a new medical 
building at the corner of Balfour Street and Carmi Avenue. The proposed building has been set to 
maintain the street line with the existing residential building to the north. Vehicular access is 
proposed off the lane to reduce any impacts a drive isle from Leir Street would be creating in this 
neighborhood.  The character of the neighborhood will not change considerably as the hospital 
and other medical buildings are directly across the street. 

 
• The proposed use will not have a negative impact including noise, unacceptable traffic generation or 

invasion of privacy on the adjacent residential uses: Staff do not feel that any negative externalities 
will impact any neighbouring residences, given that the proposed use of the property is a medical 
building. Doctor’s offices usually have daytime hours Monday to Friday.  

 
Staff consider that the application is suitable and the location of the site and characteristics of the 
surrounding neighbourhood make it appropriate for small scale commercial use. The plans submitted in 
support of the rezoning application show that the proposed development meets the guidelines for small 
scale commercial uses in the LR (Low Density Residential) designation as outlined in the OCP. As such, staff 
recommend that Council support the application to rezone the property and refer the application to the 
June 6, 2017 Public Hearing. A development variance permit, however, will be necessary to accommodate 
the construction of the medical building. Details regarding the variances are spoken to below.  
 
Deny/Refer 

Council may feel that the proposed amendments are not suitable for this site. If this is the case, Council 
should deny the bylaw amendments. If the OCP and zoning amendment do not go forward, the property 
will be restricted to residential use.  Alternatively, Council may wish to refer the matter back to staff to work 
with the applicant with direction that Council feels is appropriate.  

Support Variance 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider whether approval of the 
variance would cause an undesirable impact on neighbouring properties and if the variance request is 
reasonable. The proposed variances are as follows: 

Section 6.5 Parking Requirements Table 6.5 to reduce the number of required parking stalls from 10 to 4 
stalls and Section 6.1.4 to waive the requirement for a covenant with the City for off-site parking 

As with other new development throughout the City, it is often challenging to build within the zoning 
requirements. This development variance application will take full advantage of the development potential 
of the site in a manner which is sensitive to surrounding land uses, while providing 4 parking stalls for 
patients of the clinic. There is no room on the property to install additional parking for the staff.  The 
proposed development is located directly across from a large paid public parking area where visitors or staff 
from the clinic would be able to park. Normally, the City requires a covenant for off-site parking on private 
property. In this case, confirmation from Interior Health of the availability of the paid parking for the 
clienteles and staff has been received and is included in this report as Attachment “E”. Staff feels that this is 
adequate and in general meet the intent of the Zoning Bylaw.   

- 234 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 5 of 20 

The City has implemented the “Resident Parking Only” program in this area to improve the availability of 
parking for residences surrounding the hospital. The proposed medical building will not be granted 
residential parking passes therefore it is expected that the doctors practicing at this office will park off site 
(hospital parking lot) or use public transportation. The OCP has guidelines that support the reduced parking 
standard to accommodate OCP changes, providing that the development is within 400m of a transit stop. 
There is a bus stop located 200m away from the site. The site’s close proximity to the hospital also supports 
alternative transportation measures. Staff does not consider that the variance will have a negative impact on 
any interests of acknowledged importance, including neighbouring properties 

Schedule “G”, Section 400 part 12.7 of Subdivision & Development Bylaw where driveways must be 
located a minimum 10m to the face of curb where the flanking street is classified collector 

Subdivision and Development Bylaw 2004-81 requires that any driveway located on a corner lot be located a 
minimum of 7metres or 10 metres from the face of the curb to the adjoining street, based on the 
classification of the side street. In this case Carmi Ave is classified as a collector hence in accordance with the 
bylaw the minimum distance is 10 metres. The developer is looking to decrease the requirement from 10m 
to 7m.  

This requirement was developed to provide appropriate distance for vehicles turning corners to observe and 
react to vehicles using the driveways. It is the opinion of Staff that, in this instance, there is limited 
justification to increase the minimum distance from 7.0 metres. While there is increased traffic on Carmi Ave, 
due to the road being a collector, the impact of this is offset through a combination of the existing traffic 
calming and the reduced speed limit present during school hours.  

Staff considers that, in supporting the variance, this may not set precedent for future development in this 
area and other areas of the City. Considering the above, it is recommended that Council supports DVP 
PL7900 and direct staff to issue the permit. 

Development Permit Area Amendment 

Support 

The property is not located in a development permit area under OCP Bylaw 2002-20. Staff recommends that 
the property be included in the General Tourist Commercial Development Permit Area as this is a new 
development. The objective of the development permit area is to produce streetscape defined by attractive 
buildings and landscaping as well as establishing building forms, site planning principles and landscape 
standards appropriate for the area. By including the proposed development into a development permit area; 
staff considers that it will secure the building design for the property as well retaining securities for 
landscaping and screening. A landscape design plan prepared by a landscape professional will need to be 
submitted along with the design for the signage for the new proposed medical building. This is a staff 
issuable Development Permit and will not require Council approval. 

Deny 

Council may feel that a development permit is not suitable for this site therefore denying the insertion of the 
lot under the General Tourist Commercial Development Permit Area of OCP Bylaw 2002-20.  

Alternate Recommendations 

- 235 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 6 of 20 

1. THAT Council give first reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38” but deny support to 
“Development Variance Permit PL2017-7900”  

Attachments 

Attachment A:       Subject Property Location Map 
Attachment B : OCP Map 
Attachment C : Zoning Map 
Attachment D:   Images of Subject Property  
Attachment E  Letter from Interior Health 

Attachment F: Letter of Intent 
Attachment G: Building Rendering 
Attachment H: Site Plan 
Attachment I:  DVP 
Attachment J:  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2017-38 & OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39 
  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Audrey Tanguay, MCIP 
Senior Planner 

Approvals 

Director CAO 

AH PW 

- 236 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 7 of 20 

Attachment A  -  Subject Property 

 

Figure 1: Location Map 

  

- 237 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 8 of 20 

Attachment B  -  OCP Maps 

 

Figure 2: Current OCP Map 

 

 

 

    

- 238 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 9 of 20 

Attachment C  -  Zoning Maps 

 

Figure 3: Current Zoning Map 

  

 

 

    

- 239 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 10 of 20 

Attachment D - Images of the Subject Property 

  

Figure 4: View from Leir Street 

 

Figure 5: View from Lane 

 

- 240 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 11 of 20 

 

Figure 6: View from Carmi Avenue  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 241 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 12 of 20 

Attachment E – Letter from Interior Health 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 242 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 13 of 20 

Attachment F –Letter of Rationale 

 

 

 

 

 

- 243 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 14 of 20 

 

Attachment G – Building Rendering  

 

Figure 7: Street level view 

 

- 244 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 15 of 20 

  

 

Figure 8: Street level view 

 

Figure 9: Building Section  

- 245 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 16 of 20 

 

 Figure 10: Lower Floor Plan   

 

- 246 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 17 of 20 

 

Figure 11: Upper Floor Plan   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 247 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 18 of 20 

 

 

Attachment H: Site Plan 

 

Figure 12: Site Plan 

  

- 248 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 19 of 20 

Attachment I: DVP 

 

- 249 -



N:\city\ADDRESS\Leir St\1498\PLANNING\2017 PRJ-092\COUNCIL  Page 20 of 20 

 

 

- 250 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-38 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 Rezone Lot 3, District Lot 250, Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818 located at 1498 Leir 
Street, from R1 (Large Lot Residential) to C1 (Commercial Transition).   

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

 day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

 
Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the __ day of ____, 2017 and the __ day of ____, 2017 in the Penticton 
Western newspaper, pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter.  
 
 

 
      

 Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 
 
 
 

       
 Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

Approved pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the Transportation Act 

this _______ day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
____________________________________ 
for Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 

- 251 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-38

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

14
68

14
68

14
6814
68

14
68

14
82

14
82

14
8214
82

14
82

14
88

14
88

14
8814
88

14
88

14
96

14
96

14
9614
96

14
96

1414141414

14
83

14
83

14
8314
83

14
83

14
89

14
89

14
8914
89

14
89

14
95

14
95

14
9514
95

14
95

14
98

14
98

14
9814
98

14
98

14
92

14
92

14
9214
92

14
92

14
88

14
88

14
8814
88

14
88

14
82

14
82

14
8214
82

14
82

1414141414

14
89

14
89

14
8914
89

14
89

14
91

14
91

14
9114
91

14
91

14
93

14
93

14
9314
93

14
93

14
99

14
99

14
9914
99

14
99

57
7

57
7

57
757
7

57
7

14
96

14
96

14
9614
96

14
96

14
90

14
90

14
9014
90

14
90

14
82

14
82

14
8214
82

14
82

40
0

40
0

40
040
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

40
040
0

40
0

55
0

55
0

55
055
0

55
0

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600

CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500

Rezone 1498 Leir Street 
From R1 (Large Lot Residential) To C1 (Commercial Transition)

- 252 -



 
 

OCP Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2017-39 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Official Community Plan Bylaw 2002-20 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted an Official Community Plan Bylaw pursuant to the 
Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Official Community Bylaw 2002-20;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39.” 
 
2. Amendment: 

 
“Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2002-20” is hereby amended as follows: 

 
2.1 Amend Schedule ‘H’ Development Permit Area Map to include Lot 3, District Lot 250, 

Similkameen Division Yale District, Plan 8818, located at 1498 Leir Street, as General/Tourist 
Commercial, identified in Schedule A of this bylaw. 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this  day of , 2017 

A PUBLIC HEARING was held this  day of , 2017 

READ A SECOND time this  day of , 2017 

READ A THIRD time this  day of , 2017 

ADOPTED this  day of , 2017 

    

Notice of intention to proceed with this bylaw was published on the   __ of ___, 2017 and the __ of ___, 2017 in the Penticton newspapers, 
pursuant to Section 94 of the Community Charter. 

 
 
       
Andrew Jakubeit, Mayor 

 
 

       
Dana Schmidt, Corporate Officer 

- 253 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2017-39

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _____________________________

14
68

14
68

14
6814
68

14
68

14
82

14
82

14
8214
82

14
82

14
88

14
88

14
8814
88

14
88

14
96

14
96

14
9614
96

14
96

1414141414

14
83

14
83

14
8314
83

14
83

14
89

14
89

14
8914
89

14
89

14
95

14
95

14
9514
95

14
95

14
98

14
98

14
9814
98

14
98

14
92

14
92

14
9214
92

14
92

14
88

14
88

14
8814
88

14
88

14
82

14
82

14
8214
82

14
82

1414141414

14
89

14
89

14
8914
89

14
89

14
91

14
91

14
9114
91

14
91

14
93

14
93

14
9314
93

14
93

14
99

14
99

14
9914
99

14
99

57
7

57
7

57
757
7

57
7

14
96

14
96

14
9614
96

14
96

14
90

14
90

14
9014
90

14
90

14
82

14
82

14
8214
82

14
82

40
0

40
0

40
040
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

40
040
0

40
0

55
0

55
0

55
055
0

55
0

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

M
A

NITO
B

A
 ST 1400-1500

LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500
LEIR ST 1400-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

B
ALFO

U
R

 ST 1483-1500

CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600CARMI AVE 500-600

CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500CARMI AVE 300-500

Amend Schedule ‘H’ Development Permit Area Map to designate 
1498 Leir Street as General/Tourist Commercial

- 254 -


	6.1 - 2017-05-02 COW Minutes
	1. Call to order
	The Mayor called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 1:02 p.m.
	2. Adoption of Agenda
	THAT the agenda for the Committee of the Whole meeting held on May 2, 2017 be adopted as circulated.
	3. Delegations:
	4. Adjourn to Regular Meeting

	6.2 - 2017-05-02 Public Hearing Minutes
	1. Call to order

	6.3 - 2017-05-02 Regular Minutes
	1. Call to Order
	The Mayor called the Regular Council meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.
	2. Introduction of Late Items
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Regular Council meeting held on May 2, 2017 as amended to include item 9.3 OCP Update.
	CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	10. Public Question Period
	11. Recess to In-Camera Meeting
	17. Business Arising
	18. Council Round Table
	19. Public Question Period
	20. Adjournment

	7.1 - 2017-04-20 OCP Task Force Minutes
	Official Community Plan Task Force Meeting

	7.2 - 2017-04-21 Arts, Creative & Culture Innovations Committee Minutes
	Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations  Committee Meeting

	7.2a -  ACCI Committee Recommendation
	Arts, Creative & �Cultural Innovations Committee
	Arts, Creative & Cultural Innovations Committee
	Canada 150 Mosaic Tile Project
	Slide Number 4
	Valley First Public Sculpture Project
	Valley First Public Sculpture Project
	Slide Number 7
	Public Art Reserve Funding
	Recommendation

	8.1 - Petition - Atkinson
	8.1a - -MEMO-04 Atkinson and Granby Warrant
	8.2 - Correspondence - Guides Letters
	8.3 - Correspondence - World Ocean Day
	9.1 - RTC - Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment Transit Appendix 27 - revised per Dana
	9.1a - 2017-36 Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw - transit
	9.1b - 2017-36 Transit
	Transit

	9.2 - Council Report Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund Capacity Building Facilities GIS
	9.3 - Report Gas Tax Strategic Priorities Fund Capital Infrastructure Project Arena
	9.4 - RTC - Warren Avenue Oxbow Agreement - revised per Dana
	9.4a - Attachment B to Warren Ave agreement
	9.4b - Attachment C to Warren Ave agreement
	9.5 - Amendments (DCC Bylaw) - amended
	9.5a - 2016-72 Development Cost Charges Amendment Bylaw
	9.6 Report -License of Occupation - Access Road to Howard Lake Dam - Council Report May 23 2017
	9.6a - Attachment A - Howard Lake Dam
	9.7 - Council Report Carmi Report 12km
	9.8 - Mobile Vending Update
	14.1 - 2017-21 Zoning Amendment - Westminster Maple
	14.1a - 2017-21 Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-21)
	Slide Number 1

	14.1b - 2017-03-07 DVP
	14.1c -2017-05-23 DP
	14.2 - 2017-27 Zoning Amendment - Industrial Ave W
	14.2a - 2017-27 Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-27)
	Slide Number 1

	14.2b - 2017-04-06 DVP
	14.3 - 2017-32 Zoning Amendment - Government Street
	14.3a - 2017-32 Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-32)
	Slide Number 1

	14.4 - 2017-33 Zoning Amendment - Nanaimo Ave W
	14.4a - 2017-33 Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-33)
	Slide Number 1

	14.5 - 2017-34 Zoning Amendment - Main Street
	14.5a - 2017-34 Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-34)
	Slide Number 1

	14.6 - 2017-35 Zoning Amendment - Housekeeping
	15.1 - Report - Mile Zero
	15.1a - Correspondence - Mile Zero
	15.1b - correspondence
	15.2 - Report - Portuguese Society
	15.4 - Report (TUP Trailers)
	15.5 - Report (Administrative Clarification)
	15.6 - Report - Adoption of Zoning2017-07
	15.6a - 2017-07 Zoning Amendment - Ridgedale
	15.6b - Schedule A-Amended (Bylaw 2017-07)
	Slide Number 1

	15.7 - Report - Zoning White Ave
	15.7a - 2017-37 Zoning Amendment - White Avenue E
	15.7b - Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-37)
	Slide Number 1

	15.8 - Report Leir Street
	15.8a -  2017-38 Zoning Amendment - Leir Street
	15.8b - Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-38)
	Slide Number 1

	15.8c - 2017-39 OCP Amendment - Leir Street
	15.8d - Schedule A (Bylaw 2017-39)
	Slide Number 1




